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This Report contains certain statements of a forward-looking nature relating to future events or the future performance of 

our company. Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates” and similar expressions

or variations of such words are intended to identify forward-looking statements, but are not the only means of identifying

forward-looking statements. Prospective investors are cautioned that such statements are only predictions and that actual

events or results may differ materially. In evaluating such statements, prospective investors should specifically consider

various factors identified in this Report, including the matters set forth below under the caption “Risk Factors,” which 

could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by such forward-looking statements.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General Overland was originally founded and incorporated as Overland Data, Inc. in California in 1980. In June 2002, we

changed our name to Overland Storage, Inc. Our principal executive offices are located at 4820 Overland Avenue, San Diego,

California 92123, telephone 858-571-5555.

For 25 years we have delivered data protection solutions designed for backup and recovery to ensure business continuity.

Historically, we have focused on delivering a portfolio of tape automation solutions including loader and library systems designed

for small business and midrange computing environments. Beginning with the June 2003 acquisition of Okapi Software, Inc.

(Okapi or Okapi software), a privately-owned company based in San Diego, California, we expanded our product offerings to

include a family of intelligent disk-based backup and recovery appliances to complement our tape solutions. In August 2005,

we acquired Zetta Systems, Inc. (Zetta or Zetta Systems), a privately-owned company based in the Seattle, Washington area,

and plan to utilize the Zetta software as the basis for a new line of protected primary disk-based storage appliances.

One of the main market differentiators of our products has been that we design them around a modular, scalable architecture.

This enables customers to purchase storage as they need it, rather than having to purchase larger monolithic devices with

excess capacity. Customers can purchase an initial module to meet their near-term needs, and later increase speed and

capacity by adding modules that can be interconnected to function as a single system. This provides a lower price entry

point, investment protection, and an increased level of fault tolerance, as each module is self-sufficient and will continue 

to function even if another were to fail.

We also differentiate ourselves with our “go-to-market” approach. We are the only supplier in our market space that has 

a completely indirect sales model. We do not have a direct sales force. The majority of our sales have historically been

generated through private label arrangements with original equipment manufacturers (OEMs). The remainder of our sales

are made through commercial distributors, direct market retailers (DMRs or catalogers) and value-added resellers (VARs).

End-users of our products include small and midsize businesses, as well as divisions and operating units of large multi-national

corporations, governmental organizations, universities and other non-profit institutions. Our products are used in a broad

range of industry sectors including financial services, healthcare, retail, manufacturing, telecommunications, broadcasting,

research and development and many others. Our products are sold world-wide in the Americas, EMEA (Europe, Middle East,

Africa) and Asia Pacific. Approximately 58.8% of our revenues are generated internationally, primarily in Europe.

Our Internet address is www.overlandstorage.com. We make available free of charge on our Internet website our annual

report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed

pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically

file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. The contents of our website are not a 

part of this Report.
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Our Direction and Strategy  Our strategy is to become a market leader and innovative supplier of a complete portfolio of

tiered data storage solutions by providing intelligent appliances and software modules designed to work together to ensure

that information is “automatically safe, readily available and always there.” We intend to deliver products to address all

three tiers of data storage: primary “protected” disk, secondary disk-based backup and tertiary automated tape libraries 

for archival. Our focus will continue to be on mid-range solutions that can be easily sold worldwide through our indirect

network of resellers. We intend to leverage our leadership position in mid-range tape automation into a similar position 

in primary and secondary intelligent disk-based appliances.

Historically, magnetic tape has been used for all forms of data backup and recovery. This is because tape was, and still is, 

the only reliable, “removable”, high capacity storage media that can be taken off-site to ensure that data is safeguarded in

case of disaster. For a number of years now, Overland has held a market-leading position in mid-range tape automation, and

sales of tape automation appliances have represented more than 90% of our revenue for each of the last three fiscal years. 

In order to protect our position, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 we commenced development of a new tape automation

platform that we expect will spawn several new price competitive products. These products will be delivered to market in 

the second half of fiscal 2006. Although we expect that tape solutions will continue to be the anchor of the data protection

strategy at most companies, tape backup is time consuming and often unreliable and inefficient. The process of recovering

data from tape is also time consuming and inefficient. Ultimately, we expect that tape will likely be relegated to an archival

role for infrequently accessed data.

Over the last couple of years, the advent of low-cost serial ATA disk and iSCSI networking technology, together with greatly

increased regulatory compliance requirements and the continued growth of digital data, have driven businesses to use

secondary storage disk-based backup appliances. One of the greatest benefits of disk-based backup is the speed of restoration.

Studies show that approximately 90% of recovered data is two weeks old or younger, or last accessed within that period. 

As a result, many IT managers are electing to use disk-based appliances as an intermediate staging area, with the backup

data eventually moving to tape. We have enjoyed initial success in this relatively new market space, and we believe there 

is significant promise for future growth.

In addition to daily or periodic backup, companies are also looking for ways to protect their data continuously. Software

protection is being applied to primary storage devices through a combination of features including file and block-based

replication, near instantaneous snapshotting, virtualization and thin provisioning. We intend to use the software technology

developed by Zetta Systems, which we acquired in August 2005, as the basis for a line of protected primary storage appliances

to be introduced in the second fiscal quarter of our fiscal 2006. This product line will be marketed and sold through our

existing branded sales channel. It will be targeted to the mid-market with a goal of delivering enterprise-class availability,

built-in data protection and exceptional performance at an affordable price. The primary storage market is currently many

times larger than the secondary and tertiary storage markets, and we anticipate that the primary storage market will be 

the source of much of our long term revenue growth.

Success in the primary and secondary disk-based appliance markets will require us to introduce a steady stream of new

products that are feature-rich and competitively priced. Therefore, we must significantly enhance our software development

team and commit additional sales and marketing resources to promote and sell the products.

Products  Our current products and other offerings include:

u Tape Automation – Automated tape libraries are devices capable of managing multiple data cartridges and incorporate

two or more tape drives to provide unattended backup of large quantities of data. Our libraries incorporate tape drives

supplied by other manufacturers based on the leading mid-range tape technologies, including LTO (Linear Tape Open)

and DLTtape. We currently offer the following tape automation products:
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v   Scalable NEO SERIES® – We offer 3 versions of our NEO product family:

• NEO 2000 can accommodate up to 2 tape drives and 30 cartridges and can scale up to 8 modules high 

with 16 tape drives and 240 cartridges.

• NEO 4000 can accommodate up to 4 tape drives and 60 cartridges and can scale up to 4 modules high 

to comprise a system of 16 tape drives and 240 cartridges. Customers can configure NEO systems with 

a combination of NEO 2000 and 4000 modules.

• NEO 8000 consists of a base model with 100-cartridge capacity which can be scaled up to 500 cartridges

through a field-enabled software key. Additionally, two NEO 8000s can be interconnected to provide up 

to 1,000 cartridge capacity.

v   PowerLoaders® and Loaders – Made for smaller environments that do not require scalability, we offer both

power loaders with one or two tape drives, and loaders with only a single tape drive.

u Disk-based Products – In August 2003, we began shipping our REO SERIESTM of disk-based products based on the

technology we received in the Okapi Software acquisition. The REO product family currently consists of three products:

• REO 1000 with 4 disk drives and a native capacity of 1.6 terabytes;

• REO 4000 with 8 disk drives and a native capacity of 3.2 terabytes; and

• REO 9000 with 12 or 24 disk drives and a native capacity of up to 9.6 terabytes.

The strength of these intelligent appliances lies in the embedded Protection OSTM software which enables them to be

configured as virtual tape libraries, dynamic virtual tape drives and/or disk LUN volumes. The optional REO Multi-Site

PACTM software is also available to protect remote data by facilitating the transfer of data in virtual tape format from 

a remote REO to a central REO for management and tape storage.

u Related Products and Services – We have a variety of products and services supporting our tape libraries,

PowerLoaders and loaders. We currently offer the following additional products and services:
• Desktop and internal upgrade tape drives.
• Spares and post warranty return-to-factory and on-site service.
• Media, including tape cartridges for SDLT and LTO formats.

u VR2®(Variable Rate Randomizer) – VR2 is our patented data encoding technology. This technology, which is embedded in

an Applications Specific Integrated Circuit (ASIC) chip, is capable of significantly increasing the native capacity and data

transfer rate performance of linear tape technologies without requiring any changes in tape path design, recording heads

and/or media. This performance is accomplished by achieving encoding efficiency of greater than 99%. We have licensed

VR2 to Tandberg Data ASA for use in its Scalable Linear Recording (SLR) tape drives, to Imation Corporation as the

owner of the Travan technology format, to Quantum, formerly Certance, for use in its Travan tape drive offerings, and 

to Storage Technology Corporation (StorageTek) for use in its T9940 and T9840 drives and future tape drive products.

Customers Our operating structure is optimized for our mid-range strategy in that our products do not require us to have 

a “direct” (to end-users) sales or service force. We sell all our products on an indirect basis, primarily through three channels

or types of customers: (i) OEMs; (ii) distributors; and (iii) VARs. Regardless of the channel through which they are sold, all 

of our products are designed and manufactured to meet OEM-level requirements and reliability standards.

u OEM Channel – Our significant OEM supply agreements have been with Hewlett Packard Company (HP) and International

Business Machine Corporation (IBM), both of which incorporate our NEO products into their system offerings. Fujitsu

and NEC also purchase NEO products and sell them under their respective labels. However, we are required to sell to

them through their appointed reseller, and consequently we classify them as VAR customers rather than OEM customers.
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In August 2005, we announced that HP had selected an alternate supplier for its next-generation mid-range tape

automation product. We expect HP to begin purchasing the first product of this new line from the alternate supplier

during calendar year 2006. Although HP will continue to purchase the tape automation products currently supplied 

by Overland for some time, the new product will eventually replace the majority of those purchases. We cannot predict

how quickly this transition will occur, but believe the impact to our revenue in fiscal 2006 will be minimal. The impact 

in fiscal 2007 is expected to be significant. In light of this anticipated loss in future revenue, we intend to focus heavily 

on the delivery of new products through our higher-margin branded channel.

Although we continually strive to win new OEM business, the OEM sales cycle is often lengthy and uncertain. It typically

consists of a general technology evaluation, qualification of product specifications, verification of product performance

against these specifications, integration testing of the product within the customers’ systems, product announcement 

and volume shipment.

As is customary in the industry, our OEM contracts have a three year term, provide for periodic price reviews and the

customers are not required to purchase minimum quantities. Our existing contracts with HP (dated August 2003) and IBM

(dated November 2002) also provide that title to inventory shipped from our warehouse into various inventory hub locations

remains with us until the products are shipped to their customers. HP, including the former Compaq that HP acquired in

May 2002, has been our largest customer, accounting for approximately 54.3%, 58.8% and 58.4% of sales in fiscal 2005, 2004

and 2003, respectively. No other customer accounted for more than 10% of sales in any year during the three-year period.

u Distribution Channel – Our primary distribution customers include Bell Microproducts, Inc., Ingram Micro, Inc. and

Tech Data Corporation in the United States and approximately eight technical distributors in Europe. Typically, these

distributors sell our products to smaller VARs and catalogers who in turn sell to end-users. The distribution agreements

include provisions for rights of return, stock rotation and price protection, common terms in the commercial distribution

area. Because of these terms, revenue from shipments to these customers is not recognized until the related products 

are in turn sold by the distributor. We support these distributors through a dedicated field sales force and provide further

support through field sales personnel who work with the smaller VARs and catalogers to generate end-user sales and

create the pull through its distribution customers.

u VAR Channel – Our VAR channel includes systems integrators and larger VARs who qualify to purchase direct from

Overland. Some of these customers specialize in the insurance, banking, financial, geophysical or medical industries, 

and offer a variety of value-added services relating to our products. Our products frequently are packaged by these

customers as part of a complete data processing system or combined with other storage devices, such as redundant 

array of independent disks (RAID) systems, to deliver a complete storage subsystem. These customers also recommend

our products as replacement solutions when backup systems are upgraded, and bundle our products with storage

management software specific to the end-user’s system. We support this channel through our field sales representatives.

Our products are sold both domestically and internationally and we have sales personnel located in various cities

throughout the world. We divide our sales into three geographical regions: (1) the Americas, consisting of North and

South America; (2) Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA); and (3) Asia Pacific (APAC). Primary support for customers

in the Americas is provided from our San Diego headquarters office. EMEA is supported by our wholly-owned subsidiaries

located in Wokingham, England; Paris, France; and Munich, Germany. The subsidiary in England provides sales, technical

support and repair services, while the subsidiaries in France and Germany provide sales and technical support. Our APAC

customers are supported by our sales office in Singapore and Korea. We assign to our international distributors the right

to sell our products in a country or group of countries. In addition, many domestic customers ship a portion of our products

to their overseas customers. Our foreign sales for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 were approximately $138.5 million,

$116.5 million and $85.1 million, respectively, representing 58.8%, 48.9% and 43.4%, respectively, of our total net
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revenues. Foreign sales in the United Kingdom and Singapore, primarily in our OEM channel, were approximately 

$65.8 million and $21.8 million, respectively in fiscal 2005, $67.2 million and $9.4 million, respectively, in fiscal 2004 

and $52.2 million and $2.7 million, respectively in fiscal 2003.

Our marketing efforts include support for both our OEM and branded customers. Our branded channel partners are

provided with a full range of marketing materials, including product specification literature, software connectivity

information and application notes. Our sales management and engineering personnel provide support to the channel

partners and, in certain instances, visit potential customer sites to explain and demonstrate the technical advantages 

of our products. We maintain press relations both domestically and in Europe, and participate in national and regional

trade shows in varying degrees both domestically and internationally.

Sales to customers outside of the U.S. represent a significant portion of our sales. International sales are subject to

various risks and uncertainties. See “Our international operations are important to our business and involve unique

risks” in Risk Factors below. Sales generated by our European channel generally show seasonal slowing during our 

first fiscal quarter (July through September), reflecting the summer holiday period in Europe.

Customer Service and Support  Our technical support personnel are trained on our products and assist customers with

“plug-and-play” compatibility between multiple hardware platforms, operating systems and backup, data interchange and

storage management software. Our application engineers are available to solve more complex customer problems and visit

customer sites when necessary. Customers that need service and support can contact us through our toll-free telephone

lines, facsimile and Internet e-mail. Application notes and user manuals can be obtained directly from our website.

We generally provide a three-year advance replacement return-to-factory warranty on our NEO SERIES, PowerLoader 

and LoaderXpress products and a one year advance replacement return-to-factory warranty on our REO SERIES. We also

provide on-site service for the first warranty year of the NEO SERIES products for which we contract with third-party

service providers. For most products, we offer a program called XchangeNOW as part of our return-to-factory warranty that

enables customers to receive an advance replacement unit shipped within two business days after placing a service request.

Our customer ships the defective unit back to us using the shipping materials from the replacement unit. Separately priced

on-site warranties are offered for sale to customers of other product lines. We contract with outside vendors to provide

service relating to all on-site warranties.

Research and Development We incurred research and development (R&D) costs of $10.7 million, $7.3 million and 

$7.4 million in fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, representing 4.5%, 3.0% and 3.8% of net revenues, respectively.

We currently employ 69 people in our R&D department, including electrical, mechanical and firmware engineers who support

our tape automation business and software engineers who support our REO disk-based appliance products. In fiscal 2006

our development efforts will focus on four projects: (1) a new tape automation platform that we anticipate will spawn 

several new products targeting the price conscious small and medium business market; (2) a new protected primary storage

appliance based on the software we received in the August 2005 acquisition of Zetta Systems; (3) the addition of scalability 

to our current line of REO disk based backup and recovery appliances; and (4) software for interoperability of all of our

tiered storage products. We expect these projects will increase R&D expenditures as a percent of net revenues to greater

than 7.0% in fiscal 2006. Development of the tape automation platform has passed the prototype phase and we expect initial

customer shipments to begin in the third quarter of fiscal 2006. Development of both the new protected primary storage

appliance and REO scalability will soon be in beta testing with first customer shipments expected in the second quarter 

of fiscal 2006. Development of software interoperability of all our tiered storage products is still in the early research stage. 

We currently have no customer-sponsored R&D activities.
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In general, our level of R&D spending is dependent upon our product development cycles. During the later stages of the

cycles, including the building of alpha and beta units and design verification testing, significant amounts of development

materials are consumed. OEM customers also generally require evaluation units to qualify a new design. We anticipate 

that our move into primary storage will require a higher level of R&D spending in order for us to be competitive and

successful in this new market. Despite our R&D efforts, we may not be able to identify, develop, manufacture, market or

support new or enhanced products successfully or on a timely basis and any new products may not gain market acceptance.

Manufacturing and Suppliers  Historically, we have maintained a fully integrated factory in San Diego, California.

However, in September 2004, in order to reduce our cost structure, increase our flexibility and improve our focus on product

development, we announced plans to outsource all of our manufacturing to Sanmina-SCI Corporation (Sanmina). The

transition of manufacturing of all of our products to Sanmina was completed in August 2005. Currently, all of our products

are produced by Sanmina at their Rapid City, South Dakota plant.

We purchase completed products from Sanmina. They are generally responsible for procuring all raw materials and

producing the products to meet our specifications. However, we currently purchase tape drives and certain printed circuit

boards (PCBs) which are incorporated into our tape automation products and consign the drives and PCBs to Sanmina. 

Tape drives are the most expensive material component of these products and consignment enables us to avoid an additional

markup from Sanmina. For certain tape drives, we qualify only a single source, which can magnify the risk of shortages and

decrease our ability to negotiate with our suppliers on the basis of price. From time to time in the past, we have not obtained

as many drives as we have needed from various vendors due to drive shortages or quality issues.

In general, Overland-branded products are not manufactured until an order is received. The typical lead-time for manufacturing

products is three to five days and backlog is generally not a significant factor to our business. Our two largest OEM customers,

HP and IBM, have both required that we maintain inventory on hand, known as buffer stock, at any given time sufficient to

supply their forecasted requirements for the next three weeks. They provide weekly forecast information that allows us to

manage both raw material and finished goods inventories. The buffer stock is shipped into various distribution hubs around

the world and we retain ownership of that inventory until it is pulled by HP and IBM to fulfill customer orders, at which

time we record the sale.

Competition  The worldwide storage market is intensely competitive and barriers to entry are relatively low. However, no

significant new entry has occurred in several years. Our competitors vary in size from small start-ups to large multi-national

corporations who have substantially greater financial, R&D and marketing resources. In the tape automation market, our

primary competition includes Advanced Digital Information Corporation and Quantum Corporation with limited competition

from Storage Technology Corporation (recently acquired by Sun Microsystems, Inc.) in larger scale libraries. Key competitive

factors include product features, reliability, durability, scalability and price.

Our disk-based products currently compete with products made by Quantum Corporation, Advanced Digital Information

Corporation, Storage Technology Corporation, EMC Corporation, Network Appliance, Inc. and numerous small startups. 

We believe additional competitors are likely to enter the market. Key competitive factors in these markets include

performance, functionality, scalability, availability, interoperability, connectivity, time to market enhancements and 

total value of ownership.

The markets for all of our products are characterized by significant price competition, and we anticipate that our products

will face increasing price pressure.
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Proprietary Rights

General – In the tape automation space, we believe that patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret protection are less

significant than factors such as the knowledge, ability and experience of our personnel, new product introductions and product

enhancements. In the secondary disk-based appliance and primary protected storage spaces, we believe intellectual property

protection will be an important competitive advantage, and we intend to secure a significant number of patents, copyrights

and trademarks as quickly as possible to obtain a leadership position in these areas.

We presently hold 17 United States patents and have 6 United States patents pending. In general, these patents have a 20-year

term from the first effective filing date for each patent. We also hold a number of foreign patents and patent applications for

certain of our products and technologies. These rights, however, may not prevent competitors from developing substantially

equivalent or superior products to ours. In addition, our present and future patents may be challenged, invalidated or

circumvented, reducing or eliminating our proprietary protection.

VR2 Technology – We have entered into various intellectual property licensing agreements relating to our VR2 technology.

These agreements require the payment of royalty fees based on sales by licensees of products containing VR2. In certain

instances, we sell to the licensee ASIC chips embodying VR2 priced to include the cost of the chip plus an embedded royalty fee.

Employees  As of June 30, 2005, we had 335 employees, including 133 in sales and marketing, 61 in research and development,

89 in manufacturing and operations and 52 in finance, information systems, human resources and other management. There are

no collective bargaining contracts covering any of the employees and we believe that our relationship with our employees is good.

RISK FACTORS

An investment in our company involves a high degree of risk. In addition to the other information included in this Report, 

you should carefully consider the following risk factors in evaluating an investment in our company. You should consider

these matters in conjunction with the other information included or incorporated by reference in this Report.

Our business has been highly dependent on our level of sales to one major customer, and such customer will not 

be purchasing our next generation product. Hewlett-Packard Company (HP), including the former Compaq which HP

acquired in May 2002, has been our largest customer, accounting for approximately 54.3% of net revenues in fiscal 2005,

58.8% of net revenues in fiscal 2004 and 58.4% of net revenues in fiscal 2003. No other customer accounted for more than

10% of net revenues in fiscal 2005. Neither HP nor any other customer is obligated to purchase a specific amount of our

products or provide binding forecasts of purchases for any period.

In August 2005, we announced that HP had selected an alternate supplier for its next-generation mid-range tape automation

product. We expect HP to begin purchasing the first product of this new line from the alternate supplier during calendar year

2006. We expect HP to continue to purchase the tape automation products currently supplied by us for some time, but the new

product will eventually replace the majority of those purciases. We cannot predict how quickly this transition will occur, but we

believe the impact to our revenue during fiscal 2007 will be significant and there may be some impact to revenue in fiscal 2006.

In August 2005, we acquired Zetta Systems, Inc. and the failure to successfully integrate this acquisition, or others 

in the future, could harm our business, financial condition and operating results. We have in the past and expect in the

future to make acquisitions of complementary businesses, products or technologies as we implement our business strategy. 

For example, in June 2003 we acquired Okapi Software, Inc. and in August 2005 we acquired Zetta Systems. We are working

now to integrate Zetta and to introduce products based on the Zetta software. If we fail to integrate Zetta successfully, it could

harm our business, financial condition and operating results.
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Mergers and acquisitions involve numerous risks, including liabilities that we may assume from the acquired company,

difficulties in the assimilation of the operations and personnel of the acquired business, the diversion of management’s

attention from other business concerns, risks of entering markets in which we have no direct prior experience, and the

potential loss of key employees of the acquired business.

Future mergers and acquisitions by us also may result in dilutive issuances of our equity securities and the incurrence 

of additional debt and amortization expenses related to intangible assets. Any of these factors could adversely affect our

business, liquidity, results of operation and financial position.

We have outsourced all of our manufacturing to Sanmina-SCI Corporation. If we are unable to obtain our products

from Sanmina-SCI in a cost effective and timely manner that meets our customers’ expectations, such failure could

materially and adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.  In July 2005, we

completed the outsourcing of all our manufacturing to Sanmina-SCI Corporation. We face a number of risks as a result 

of our decision to outsource manufacturing to Sanmina. Sanmina will be the sole source supplier for all of our products.

Because of this dependence on one supplier, we are at greater risk of experiencing shortages or other delays in customer

deliveries which could result in customer dissatisfaction and lost sales. We will also be dependent on Sanmina for product

quality, over which we will have limited control. Our agreement with Sanmina also commits us to purchase products and

materials based upon a forecast of customer demand that we provide. In the event of a reduction or shift in product mix in

the forecast, we would be obligated to purchase finished goods in excess of customer demand, or be required to reimburse

Sanmina for unique parts or excess or obsolete inventory. As a result, we could experience reduced gross margins based 

on these purchase commitments.

Our new disk-based products involve many significant risks.  In August 2003, we began shipping our REO SERIES 

of secondary disk-based backup and recovery products based on technology acquired from Okapi Software, Inc. We also

expect to introduce a disk-based protected primary storage product in October 2005 based on the technology acquired 

from Zetta Systems, Inc.

The success of these disk-based products is uncertain and subject to significant risks, any of which could have a material adverse

effect on our business, liquidity, results of operation and financial position. We must commit significant resources to these new

products before determining whether they will succeed. If these new products are not adopted by customers or do not achieve

anticipated sales levels, any related intangible assets we have recorded may be impaired. Such impairment would result in a charge

against earnings in the period for which impairment is determined to exist, and reduce our assets and shareholders’ equity.

Prior to our acquisition of Okapi Software, we had not been involved in the development, marketing and sale of disk-based

products, and prior to our acquisition of Zetta Systems, we had not been involved in the protected primary storage market.

The protected primary storage area is still new to many of our personnel. We will need to continuously update and periodically

upgrade these products to stay competitive. Any delay in the commercial release of new or enhanced disk-based products

could result in a significant loss of potential revenues and may adversely impact the market price of our common stock.

If our disk-based products do not achieve market acceptance or success, then the association of our brand name with these

products may adversely affect our reputation and our sales of other products, as well as dilute the value of our brand name.
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The market price of our common stock may be volatile.  The market price of our common stock has experienced

significant fluctuations since it commenced trading in February 1997. The market price of our common stock may continue

to fluctuate significantly in the future. Many factors could cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate, including:

• announcements concerning us, our competitors, our customers or our industry;

• changes in earnings estimates by analysts;

• purchasing decisions of HP and other significant customers;

• quarterly variations in operating results;

• the introduction of new technologies or products;

• changes in product pricing policies by us or our competitors; and

• changes in general economic conditions.

In addition, stock markets have experienced extreme price and volume volatility in recent years. This volatility has had a

substantial effect on the market prices of securities of many smaller public companies for reasons frequently unrelated or

disproportionate to the operating performance of the specific companies. These market fluctuations may adversely affect 

the market price of our common stock.

Our financial results may fluctuate substantially for many reasons, and past results should not be relied on as

indications of future performance.  All of the markets that we serve are volatile and subject to market shifts, which 

we may not be able to discern in advance. A slowdown in the demand for workstations, mid-range computer systems,

networks and servers could have a significant adverse effect on the demand for our products in any given period. We 

have experienced delays in receipt of purchase orders and, on occasion, anticipated purchase orders have been rescheduled

or have not materialized due to changes in customer requirements. Our customers may cancel or delay purchase orders 

for a variety of reasons, including the rescheduling of new product introductions, changes in their inventory practices or

forecasted demand, general economic conditions affecting our customers’ markets, changes in our pricing or the pricing 

of our competitors, new product announcements by us or others, quality or reliability problems related to our products 

or selection of competitive products as alternate sources of supply. In particular, our ability to forecast sales to distributors,

integrators and value-added resellers is especially limited as these customers typically provide to us relatively short order

lead times or are permitted to change orders on short notice. Given that a large portion of our sales are generated by our

European channel, our first fiscal quarter (July through September) is commonly impacted by seasonally slow European

orders, reflecting the summer holiday period in Europe.

In addition, our financial results have fluctuated and will continue to fluctuate quarterly and annually based on many 

other factors such as:

• changes in customer mix (e.g., OEM vs. branded);

• changes in product mix;

• fluctuations in average selling prices;

• currency exchange fluctuations;

• increases in costs and expenses associated with the introduction of new products; and

• increases in the cost of or limitations on availability of materials.

Based on all of the foregoing, we believe that our revenues and operating results will continue to fluctuate, and period-to-period

comparisons are not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied on as indications of future performance. Furthermore,

in some future quarters, our revenues and operating results could be below the expectations of public market analysts or

investors, which could result in a material adverse effect on the price of our common stock. In addition, portions of our expenses

are fixed and difficult to reduce if revenues do not meet our expectations. These fixed expenses magnify the material adverse

effect of any revenue shortfall.

PAGE 34 SIMPLY PROTECTED



We face intense competition and price pressure, and many of our competitors have substantially greater resources

than we do.  The worldwide storage market is intensely competitive as a number of manufacturers of tape automation

solutions and storage management software products compete for a limited number of customers. In addition, barriers to

entry are relatively low in these markets. We currently participate in the mid-range of the tape backup market. In this

segment, some of our competitors have substantially greater financial and other resources, larger research and development

staffs, and more experience and capabilities in manufacturing, marketing and distributing products. Our hardware products

currently compete with products made by Advanced Digital Information Corporation, Quantum Corporation and Storage

Technology Corporation (recently acquired by Sun Microsystems). Our disk-based products currently compete with products

made by International Business Machines Corporation, HP, Computer Associates International, Inc., EMC Corporation,

Veritas Software Corporation, Quantum Corporation, Network Appliance, Inc. and numerous small startups. The markets

for our products are characterized by significant price competition, and we anticipate that our products will face increasing

price pressure. This pressure could result in significant price erosion, reduced profit margins and loss of market share, 

any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, liquidity, results of operation and financial position.

Our business is highly dependent on the continued availability and market acceptance of the tape technologies

incorporated in our products.  We have historically derived a majority of our revenue from products that incorporate tape

drives purchased from other manufacturers and based on unique formats and tape technologies. Certain of these tape drives

are available only from a single manufacturer. For the foreseeable future, we expect to continue to derive a substantial

amount of our revenue from products incorporating these tape drives.

A portion of our products incorporate DLTtape drives manufactured by Quantum Corporation. Quantum also is one of our

competitors because Quantum markets its own tape automation products. We do not have a long-term contract with Quantum,

which could cease supplying tape drives directly to us.

In addition, from time to time in the past, we have not obtained as many drives as we have needed from various vendors due

to drive shortages or quality issues. Any prolonged inability to obtain adequate deliveries could require us to pay more for

components, parts and other supplies, seek alternative sources of supply, delay shipment of products and damage relationships

with current and prospective customers. This type of delay or damage could have a material adverse effect on our business,

liquidity, results of operation and financial position. In fiscal 1997, we experienced problems with the supply of a newly-

introduced tape drive and these problems materially adversely affected our sales and earnings for that year. And, in the

fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we experienced drive availability issues which had a lesser effect on sales and earnings for the

quarter. We cannot assure you that these or similar problems will not reoccur, or that we will not experience similar or more

serious disruptions in supply in the future with current or new versions of tape drives.

Our future operating results depend on the continued availability and market acceptance of the current tape technologies

that we use. If tape drives incorporating other technologies gain comparable or superior market acceptance than those

currently incorporated in our products, we might have to modify the design of our tape automation products to incorporate

these tape drives. Our inability to do so or to obtain sufficient quantities of these tape drives could have a material adverse

effect on our business, liquidity, results of operation and financial position.

Our tape-based storage solutions compete indirectly with other storage technologies, such as hard disk drives, and may face

competition in the future from other emerging technologies. The prices of hard disk drives continue to decrease while capacity

and performance have increased. We expect that our tape-based products will face increased competition from these alternative

technologies. If our strategy to compete in disk-based markets does not succeed, our business, financial condition and operating

results will be materially and adversely affected.
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Our success depends on our ability to anticipate rapid technological changes and develop new and enhanced

products. As an advanced technology company, we are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, generally characterized

by rapid technological change and intense competition. In this environment, our future success will depend on our ability 

to anticipate changes in technology, to develop new and enhanced products on a timely and cost-effective basis and to

introduce, manufacture and achieve market acceptance of these new and enhanced products. Development schedules 

for high technology products are inherently subject to uncertainty. We may not meet our product development schedules,

including those for products based on our disk-based technology, and development costs could exceed budgeted amounts. 

In addition, there can be no assurance that the licensees of our VR2 technology will meet their product development schedules.

Our business, liquidity, results of operation and financial position may be materially and adversely affected if the products

or product enhancements that we develop are delayed or not delivered due to developmental problems, quality issues or

component shortage problems, or if our products or product enhancements do not achieve market acceptance or are unreliable.

The introduction, whether by us or our competitors, of new products embodying new technologies, such as new sequential 

or random access mass storage devices, and the emergence of new industry standards could render existing products 

obsolete or not marketable, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, liquidity, results of operation 

and financial position.

Our international operations are important to our business and involve unique risks.  Historically, sales to customers

outside of the U.S. have represented a significant portion of our sales and we expect them to continue representing a

significant portion of sales. Sales to customers outside the U.S. are subject to various risks, including:

• the imposition of governmental controls mandating compliance with various foreign and U.S. export laws;

• currency exchange fluctuations;

• political and economic instability;

• trade restrictions;

• changes in tariffs and taxes;

• longer payment cycles (typically associated with international sales); and

• difficulties in staffing and managing international operations.

Furthermore, we cannot assure that we will be able to comply with changes in foreign standards in the future, even though

we endeavor to meet standards established by foreign regulatory bodies. Our inability to design products that comply with

foreign standards could have a material adverse effect on our business, liquidity, results of operation and financial position.

We are subject to exchange rate risk in connection with our international operations.  We do not currently engage in

foreign currency hedging activities and therefore we are exposed to some level of currency risk. As foreign currency exchange

rates vary, the fluctuations in revenues and expenses may materially impact the financial statements upon consolidation. A

weaker U.S. dollar would result in an increase to revenues and expenses upon consolidation, and a stronger U.S. dollar would

result in a decrease to revenues and expenses upon consolidation. Currently, nearly all of our international sales are

denominated in U.S. dollars.

Furthermore, the results of operations of our foreign subsidiaries are exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations as the

financial results of the subsidiaries are translated from the local currency to U.S. dollars upon consolidation. Because of the

significance of the operations of our subsidiaries to our consolidated operations, as exchange rates vary, net sales and other

operating results, when translated, may differ materially from our prior performance and our expectations. In addition,

because of the significance of our overseas operations, we could also be significantly affected by weak economic conditions 

in foreign markets that could reduce demand for our products and further negatively impact the results of our operations 

in a material and adverse manner.
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Our ability to compete effectively depends in part on our ability to protect effectively our intellectual property rights.

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret and other intellectual property laws to protect 

our intellectual property rights. These rights, however, may not prevent competitors from developing products that are

substantially equivalent or superior to our products. To the extent we have or obtain patents, such patents may not afford

meaningful protection for our technology and products. Others may challenge our patents and, as a result, our patents could

be narrowed, invalidated or declared unenforceable. In addition, current or future patent applications may not result in 

the issuance of patents in the United States or foreign countries. The laws of certain foreign countries may not protect 

our intellectual property to the same extent as U.S. laws. Furthermore, competitors may independently develop similar

products, duplicate our products or, if patents are issued to us, design around these patents.

In order to protect or enforce our patent rights, we may initiate interference proceedings, oppositions, or patent litigation

against third parties, such as infringement suits. These lawsuits could be expensive, take significant time and divert

management’s attention from other business concerns. The patent position of information technology firms generally is

highly uncertain, involves complex legal and factual questions, and has recently been the subject of much litigation. No

consistent policy has emerged from the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office or the courts regarding the breadth of claims

allowed or the degree of protection afforded under information technology patents.

Our success will depend partly on our ability to operate without infringing on or misappropriating the proprietary

rights of others.  Our business is such that we may at any time be sued for infringing the patent rights or misappropriating

the proprietary rights of others. For example, during fiscal 2004 we settled a case alleging patent infringement. Intellectual

property litigation is costly and, even if we prevail, the cost of such litigation could adversely affect our business, financial

condition and results of operations. In addition, litigation is time consuming and could divert management attention and

resources away from our business. If we do not prevail in any litigation, we could be required to stop the infringing activity

and/or pay substantial damages. Under some circumstances in the United States, these damages could be triple the actual

damages the patent holder incurs. If we have supplied infringing products to third parties for marketing or licensed third

parties to manufacture, use or market infringing products, we may be obligated to indemnify these third parties for any

damages they may be required to pay to the patent holder and for any losses the third parties may sustain themselves 

as the result of lost sales or damages paid to the patent holder.

If a third party holding rights under a patent successfully asserts an infringement claim with respect to any of our products,

we may be prevented from manufacturing or marketing our infringing product in the country or countries covered by the

patent we infringe, unless we can obtain a license from the patent holder. Any required license may not be available to us 

on acceptable terms, or at all. Some licenses may be non-exclusive, and therefore, our competitors may have access to the

same technology licensed to us. If we fail to obtain a required license or are unable to design around a patent, we may be

unable to market some of our products, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition 

and results of operations.

Our warranty reserves may not adequately cover our warranty obligations.  We have established reserves for the

estimated liability associated with our product warranties. However, we could experience unforeseen circumstances where

these or future reserves may not adequately cover our warranty obligations. For example, the failure or inadequate

performance of product components that we purchase could increase our warranty obligations beyond these reserves.

Our success depends on our ability to attract, retain and motivate our executives and other key personnel.  

Our future success depends in large part on our ability to attract, retain and motivate our executives and other key personnel,

many of whom have been instrumental in developing new technologies and setting strategic plans. Our growth also depends

in large part on our continuing ability to hire, motivate and retain highly qualified management, technical, sales and marketing

team members. Competition for qualified personnel is intense and there can be no assurance that we will retain existing

personnel or attract additional qualified personnel in the future.
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Changes in stock option accounting rules may adversely impact our reported operating results prepared in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, our stock price and our competitiveness in the

employee marketplace.  Technology companies in general and our company in particular have a history of depending

upon and using broad based employee stock option programs to hire, incentivize and retain employees in a competitive

marketplace. For fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, we did not recognize compensation expense for stock options issued to

employees or directors, except in limited cases involving modifications of stock options, and we instead disclosed in the notes

to our financial statements information about what such charges would be if they were expensed. Beginning with the first

quarter of fiscal 2006, we have adopted SFAS No. 123(R), which will require us to record equity-based compensation expense

for stock options and employee stock purchase plan rights granted to employees based on the fair value of the equity instrument

at the time of grant. The change in accounting rules will lead to a decrease in reported earnings or an increase in reported

net loss, as the case may be. This may negatively impact our future stock price. In addition, this change in accounting rules

could impact our ability to utilize broad based employee stock plans to reward employees and could result in a competitive

disadvantage to us in the employee marketplace. See Note 1, “Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies –

Stock Based Compensation, of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” for more information concerning our adoption 

of this accounting standard.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We own no real property and we currently lease all facilities used in our business. Our headquarters are located in San Diego,

California in a two-building light industrial complex comprising approximately 160,000 square feet. The lease expires in

February 2014 and can be renewed for one additional five-year period. This San Diego facility houses all of our research 

and development, and administrative functions, as well as a major portion of sales, sales administration, marketing and

customer support.

We lease a 17,000 square foot facility located in Wokingham, England, which houses sales, technical support and repair

services. The lease expires in January 2018. We also maintain small sales offices located close to Paris, France, Munich,

Germany, Singapore and Korea.

We are obligated under a lease on a 15,000 square foot facility in Longmont, Colorado which was used by an operation we

shut down in 2001. The facility is currently vacant and the lease expires in November 2005.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are from time to time involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. 

We are currently not aware of any such legal proceedings or claims that we believe will have, individually or in the aggregate,

a material adverse affect on our business, financial condition or operating results. However, litigation is subject to inherent

uncertainties, and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm our business.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock trades on The NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “OVRL”. As of September 7, 2005, there were

approximately 133 shareholders of record. We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate

paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The high and low bid quotations of our common stock from June 29, 2003

through July 3, 2005 were as follows:

BID QUOTATIONS HIGH LOW

Fiscal Year 2005:

Fourth quarter $ 14.86 $   9.34

Third quarter 17.19 13.92

Second quarter 17.34 13.51

First quarter 14.99 9.86

Fiscal Year 2004:

Fourth quarter $ 17.61 $ 13.00

Third quarter 23.57 16.04

Second quarter 20.94 16.05

First quarter 22.00 13.76

The above quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail markup, markdown or commission and may not necessarily

represent actual transactions.

Share Repurchase Authorization  On August 11, 2004, our board of directors authorized the purchase of up to $10.0 million

of our common stock on the open market or through negotiated transactions. This repurchase authority allows us to selectively

repurchase our common stock from time to time in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions depending on

market price and other factors. The share repurchase authorization has no stated expiration date. During the fourth quarter

of fiscal 2005, 32,500 shares were repurchased under the repurchase authorization as follows:

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities Under Share Repurchase Authorization
(D) MAXIMUM NUMBER (OR 

(C) TOTAL NUMBER OF    APPROXIMATE DOLLAR VALUE)
SHARES PURCHASED AS PART  OF SHARES THAT MAY YET BE 

(A) TOTAL NUMBER OF (B) AVERAGE PRICE OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED PURCHASED UNDER THE 
PERIOD SHARES PURCHASED PAID PER SHARE PLANS OR PROGRAMS PLANS OR PROGRAMS

April 4 through May 1, 2005 0 N/A N/A $ 10,000,000

May 2 through May 29, 2005 0 N/A N/A $ 10,000,000

May 30 through July 3, 2005 32,500 $ 9.46 32,500 $   9,692,404

Total 32,500 $ 9.46 32,500 $   9,692,404
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ITEM 6. SELECTED F INANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data has been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements and the related

notes. This information should be read in conjunction with Item 7 of this Report – “Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes set

forth at the pages indicated in Item 15(a)(1) of this Report.

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands, except for per share data) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Income Statement Data:

Net revenues $ 235,687 $ 238,139 $ 195,881 $ 163,380 $ 155,696

Gross profit 60,917 64,654 54,018 42,445 39,034

Income from operations 3,524 15,598 10,310 6,516 3,699

Income before income taxes 5,068 16,199 10,193 6,839 4,017

Net income 4,578 10,625 6,682 4,493 2,494

Net income per share(1):

Basic $        0.33 $        0.79 $        0.59 $        0.42 $        0.24

Diluted $        0.32 $        0.74 $        0.54 $        0.40 $        0.23

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments $   76,887 $   69,657 $   55,020 $   26,884 $   10,844

Working capital 110,363 103,244 84,326 54,463 46,999

Total assets 164,554 144,851 130,922 81,003 70,171

Long-term debt, inclusive of current portion — — 3,957 4,655 —

Shareholders’ equity 121,494 113,514 93,264 59,266 51,679

(1) See Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for an explanation of shares used in computing net income per share.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF F INANCIAL CONDIT ION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The discussion in this section contains certain statements of a forward-looking nature relating to future events or our future

performance. Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates” and similar expressions

or variations of such words are intended to identify forward-looking statements, but are not the only means of identifying

forward-looking statements. Such statements are only predictions and actual events or results may differ materially. In

evaluating such statements, you should specifically consider various factors identified in this Report, including the matters

set forth under the caption “Risk Factors,” which could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by such

forward-looking statements.

Overview  In fiscal 2005, revenue decreased by 1.0%, net income by 56.9% and diluted earnings per share by 56.8%. Our

performance reflects a 9.5% decrease in revenue from our OEM customers partially offset by a 17.3% growth in revenue from

our branded channel customers. Our largest customer accounted for approximately 54.3% of total net revenue in fiscal 2005

compared to 58.8% in fiscal 2004. Our gross profit margin decreased from 27.1% in fiscal 2004 to 25.8% in fiscal 2005. The

decline in gross profit included $2.1 million of transition costs related to the outsourcing of our manufacturing process. While

we experienced a decline in revenue and gross profit, operating expenses grew by 17.0%. The spending increase was in (i) sales

and marketing expenses, reflecting an increase in headcount primarily to support the growth in our branded channel, (ii)

research and development which included continued investment in REOTM development and (iii) general and administrative

expenses as a result of increased costs associated with compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.



We ended the year with approximately $76.9 million in cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments compared to

$69.7 million in fiscal 2004. At the end of fiscal years 2005 and 2004 we had no debt outstanding on our credit facility. During

fiscal 2005 we generated cash from operations of $8.2 million and generated $2.6 million from the exercise of stock options

and purchases under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP); offset by capital expenditures of approximately $3.4 million.

Our strategy is to become a market leader and innovative supplier of a complete portfolio of tiered data storage solutions by

providing intelligent appliances and software modules designed to work together to ensure that information is “automatically

safe, readily available and always there.” We intend to deliver products to address all three tiers of data storage: primary

“protected” disk, secondary disk-based backup and tertiary automated tape libraries for archival. Our focus will continue 

to be on mid-range solutions that can be easily sold worldwide through our indirect network of resellers. We intend to

leverage our leadership position in mid-range tape automation into a similar position in primary and secondary intelligent

disk-based appliances.

In September 2004, in order to enhance our strategic competitiveness and increase our flexibility, we announced a plan to

outsource all of our manufacturing, currently located in California, to a U.S. third party manufacturer. In November 2004,

the contract with the outsource manufacturer was finalized and all employees were notified of termination dates and benefits.

We completed the transfer all of our manufacturing operations in August 2005. We expect to incur between $2.5 million 

and $3.0 million of pretax charges for outsourcing severance costs and other obligations. We recorded $2.1 million of these

charges in fiscal 2005 as a cost of revenue, and expect up to an additional $900,000 in charges in the first quarter of fiscal 2006.

The charges in fiscal 2005 include an expense of $1.5 million representing one-time termination benefits and $523,000 of

other transition costs which were recorded as incurred.

In August 2005, Hewlett-Packard Company (HP) informed us of its decision not to purchase its next-generation, mid-range

tape automation production line from Overland. HP will continue to purchase the tape automation products currently supplied

by us for some time; however, the new product will eventually replace the majority of those purchases. We cannot predict

how quickly this transition will occur, but we believe the impact to our revenue during fiscal 2006 will be minimal. The

impact to our revenues in fiscal 2007 is expected to be significant. In light of this anticipated loss in future revenue, we intend

to focus heavily on the delivery of new higher-margin products to our branded channel during fiscal 2006. Our current three-

year contract with HP expires in July 2006. The contract does not commit HP to buy specific quantities of product at any time.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations

are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires that we

make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and related

disclosure of contingent liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to revenue

recognition, bad debts, inventories, income taxes, warranty obligations and contingencies. We base our estimates on historical

experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which

form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from

other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation 

of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition Revenue on direct product sales (excluding sales to distributors and certain OEM customers) is

recognized upon shipment of products to such customers. These customers are not entitled to any specific right of return 

or price protection, except for any defective product that may be returned under our warranty policy. Title and risk of loss

transfer to the customer when the product leaves our dock. Product sales to distribution customers are subject to certain

rights of return, stock rotation privileges and price protection. Because we are unable to estimate our exposure for returned
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product or price adjustments, revenue from shipments to these customers is not recognized until the related products are in

turn sold to the ultimate customer by the distributor. As part of our existing agreements with certain OEM customers, we

ship products to various distribution hubs around the world and retain ownership of that inventory until it is pulled by these

OEM customers to fulfill their customer orders, at which time, generally the same business day, the Overland sale is recorded.

We have entered into various licensing agreements relating to our Variable Rate Randomizer (VR2) technology. These

agreements typically call for royalty fees based on sales by licensees of products containing VR2. Royalties on sales by

licensees of products containing VR2 are recorded when earned, generally in the period during which the licensee ships the

products containing VR2 technology. In certain instances, the customer has elected to purchase, from us, the Applications

Specific Integrated Circuit (ASIC) chips embodying VR2, which are priced to include the cost of the chip plus an embedded

royalty fee. In these instances, revenue on ASIC chip sales are recorded as product revenue when earned, which is upon 

the shipment of the underlying ASIC chip incorporating the VR2 technology to the customer.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts We estimate our allowance for doubtful accounts based on an assessment of the

collectibility of specific accounts and the overall condition of the accounts receivable portfolio. When evaluating the adequacy

of the allowance for doubtful accounts, we analyze specific trade and other receivables, historical bad debts, customer

credits, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness, current economic trends and changes in customers’ payment

terms and/or patterns. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their

ability to make additional payments, then we may need to make additional allowances. Likewise, if we determine that we

could realize more of our receivables in the future than previously estimated, we would adjust the allowance to increase

income in the period we made this determination. We review the allowance for doubtful accounts on a quarterly basis 

and record adjustments as deemed necessary.

Inventory Valuation We record inventories at the lower of cost or market value. We assess the value of our inventories

periodically based upon numerous factors including expected product or material demand, current market conditions,

technological obsolescence, current cost and net realizable value. If necessary, we adjust our inventory for obsolete or

unmarketable inventory equal to the difference between the cost of the inventory and the estimated market value. Likewise,

we record an adverse purchase commitment liability when anticipated market sales prices are lower than committed 

costs. If actual market conditions are less favorable than what we projected, we may need to record additional inventory

adjustments and adverse purchase commitments.

Income Taxes We estimate our tax liability based on current tax laws in the statutory jurisdictions in which we operate.

These estimates include judgments about deferred tax assets and liabilities resulting from temporary differences between

assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting purposes and such amounts recognized for tax purposes, as well 

as about the realization of deferred tax assets. If we cannot realize certain deferred tax assets or if the tax laws change

unfavorably, we could experience potential significant losses in excess of provisions established. Likewise, if we can realize

additional deferred tax assets or if tax laws change favorably, we could experience potential significant gains.

Warranty Obligations We generally provide a three-year advance replacement return-to-factory warranty on our NEO SERIES,

PowerLoader and LoaderXpress products and a one year advance replacement return-to-factory warranty on our REO SERIES.

We also provide on-site service for the first warranty year of the NEO SERIES products for which we contract with third-party

service providers. For most products, we offer a program called XchangeNOW as part of our return-to-factory warranty

which enables customers to receive an advance replacement unit shipped within two business days after placing a service

request. The customer ships the defective unit back to us using the shipping materials from the replacement unit. We record

a provision for estimated future warranty costs at the time of shipment for both the return-to-factory and on-site warranties.

Separately priced on-site warranties are offered for sale to customers of other product lines. We contract with outside vendors to

provide service relating to all on-site warranties. Warranty revenue and amounts paid in advance to outside service organizations

are recognized in the financial statements in revenue and cost of revenue, respectively, over the warranty period.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets We also consider potential impairment of both tangible and intangible long-lived assets

when circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. In such circumstances, we may

incur material charges relating to the impairment of such asset. We would measure any required impairment loss as the

amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its fair value and we would record it as a reduction in the carrying value

of the related assets and charge it to results of operations.

Results of Operations  The following tables set forth certain financial data as a percentage of net revenue:

FISCAL YEAR 2005 2004 2003

Net revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of revenues 74.2% 72.9% 72.4%

Gross profit 25.8% 27.1% 27.6%

Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 14.6% 13.0% 13.6%

Research and development 4.5% 3.0% 3.8%

General and administrative 5.2% 4.6% 4.9%

24.3% 20.6% 22.3%

Income from operations 1.5% 6.5% 5.3%

Other income (expense), net 0.7% 0.3% (0.1%)

Income before income taxes 2.2% 6.8% 5.2%

Provision for income taxes 0.3% 2.3% 1.8%

Net income 1.9% 4.5% 3.4%

Fiscal Year 2005 Compared to Fiscal Year 2004

Net Revenue. Net revenue decreased from $238.1 million in fiscal 2004 to $235.7 million in fiscal 2005. The decrease 

of $2.4 million or 1.0% is primarily due to a 9.5% decrease in revenue from OEM customers, as a group. This decrease is

primarily a result in declining sales to HP attributed to the decrease of NEO2000 products and spare parts. Net revenue

from HP represented approximately 54.3% of net revenue in fiscal 2005 compared to approximately 58.8% in fiscal 2004.

Net revenue from Overland branded products increased from $79.4 million in fiscal 2004 to $93.2 million in fiscal 2005. 

The increase of $13.8 million or 17.3% was primarily the result of an increase in sales of REO disk-based products and a 

$4.0 million increase in revenue from Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA) related to shipments under a large contract

with a European governmental agency. Fiscal 2004 product sales represent less than an entire year of REO sales as we

began shipping the first REO product in August 2003. In addition, in October 2004, we introduced a new REO product 

which resulted in sales of approximately $7.1 million for fiscal 2005.

In addition, VR2 revenue in fiscal 2005 decreased from $3.8 million in fiscal 2004 to $2.2 million in fiscal 2005. This decrease

of $1.6 million or 42% was the result of declining chip sales. In fiscal 2005, royalties represented $1.9 million of VR2 revenue

compared to $1.7 million in fiscal 2004. During fiscal 2005 chip sales decreased to $240,000 from $2.0 million in fiscal 2004.

We project that revenue will grow in fiscal 2006 by approximately 6% over fiscal 2005. This projection includes 40% growth

in our branded business, driven largely by sales of new products including our new protected primary storage offering and

new scalable REO products we plan to introduce in the second quarter of fiscal 2006, and our new tape automation products

beginning in the third quarter of fiscal 2006. We estimate that this growth in branded revenue will be partially offset by 

a 16% decline in sales to OEM customers, primarily HP.
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A summary of the sales mix by product for the periods presented in the statement of operations follows:

FISCAL YEAR 2005 2004 2003

LibraryXpress products:

NEO Series 68.0% 68.8% 66.1%

Loaders 8.9% 10.3% 15.3%

76.9% 79.1% 81.4%

Spare parts, drives, other 17.9% 18.6% 16.8%

Disk based 4.2% 0.7% 0.0%

VR2 1.0% 1.6% 1.8%

100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Gross Profit. Gross profit decreased from $64.7 million in fiscal 2004 to $60.9 million in fiscal 2005. The decrease of

approximately $3.8 million or 5.8% is primarily due to an overall decrease in our net revenue of $2.4 million, as described

above, and an increase of $2.1 million in cost of revenue associated with the outsourcing of our manufacturing activities. In

addition, during fiscal 2005 warranty costs increased by $2.6 million as a result of more products under warranty compared

to the prior year. These cost increases were partially offset by favorable product mix within our branded channel and a larger

concentration of higher margin sales of branded products versus lower margin OEM products.

Excluding the impact of outsourcing charges in fiscal 2005 and amortization in fiscal 2006 of acquisition costs associated with the

Zetta acquisition, we expect our gross margin percentage in fiscal 2006 to be relatively unchanged from fiscal 2005. Although sales

of branded products are expected to represent a higher percentage of total revenue in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005, we expect

that the gross margin percentage on our new products will initially be lower than our existing products, which is consistent with

our past experience. In fiscal 2007 we will focus on cost reductions, which we expect will result in gross margin improvements.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses increased to $34.4 million in fiscal 2005 from $30.8 million

in fiscal 2004. The increase of approximately $3.6 million or 11.5% is primarily associated with an expansion of our branded

sales force. We expect that sales and marketing expenses in fiscal 2006 will grow 15% to 20% over fiscal 2005 representing

incremental spending to introduce and promote our new products introduced during the year, and to increase our sales and

technical support services.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses increased to $10.7 million in fiscal 2005 from

$7.3 million in fiscal 2004. The increase of approximately $3.4 million or 47.2% is primarily due to an increase of approximately

$1.4 million associated with an increase in headcount for further development of REO and other new products, and a related

increase in development costs of approximately $1.2 million. We anticipate heavy R&D spending in fiscal 2006 for completion

of the development of our new tape library platform, the new scalable REO products, and the new protected primary storage

offerings. We also expect heavy research and development spending related to the integration of the development team from

the August 2005 acquisition of Zetta Systems. R&D spending for fiscal 2006 is expected to grow 

by approximately 65% over fiscal 2005.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased to $12.3 million in fiscal 2005 from

$10.9 million in fiscal 2004. The increase of approximately $1.4 million or 12.6% is primarily due to a $1.3 million increase in

consulting and auditing fees associated with compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and an increase

of approximately $555,000 associated with an increase in general operating activities during fiscal 2005. These increases were

offset by a $639,000 decrease in legal fees in fiscal 2005, which primarily resulted from the settlement of the Raytheon patent

infringement lawsuit in April 2004. We anticipate that general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2006 will be relatively

flat compared to the spending in fiscal 2005.
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Interest Income, Net. Interest income increased to $1.5 million in fiscal 2005 from $533,000 in fiscal 2004. The increase 

of approximately $1.0 million or 181.4% is due to higher average cash balances combined with higher average yields when

compared to fiscal 2004.

Provision for Income Taxes. Provision for income taxes decreased from $5.6 million in fiscal 2004 to $490,000 in fiscal 2005.

The decrease of approximately $5.1 million or 91.2% is primarily the result of the decrease in fiscal 2005 earnings compared

to fiscal 2004 and changes in prior year estimates due to the favorable settlement of IRS audits and statute expirations. 

Due to the expected taxable loss in fiscal 2006, we expect to receive a benefit at the statutory rate. In addition, we expect a

benefit comparable to fiscal 2005 related to the research and development tax credit, and a reduced Extraterritorial Income

Benefit (ETI), compared to fiscal 2005, as a result of the phase out of the ETI exclusion.

Fiscal Year 2004 Compared to Fiscal Year 2003

Net Revenue. Net revenue of $238.1 million in fiscal year 2004 was $42.2 million or 21.6% above net revenue of $195.9 million

in fiscal 2003. This revenue growth was driven by increased unit sales and generally reflected the continued strong performance

of our NEO SERIES line of tape library products. Sales within our library product lines (NEO, LibraryXpress®, LibraryPro®,

Loaders and PowerLoaders) grew 18.9% to $189.8 million, compared to $159.6 million in fiscal 2003. Fiscal 2004 sales to OEM

customers were up 22.5 % compared to fiscal 2003. The increase in revenue from our OEM customers was driven largely by

depressed quarters in the first part of fiscal 2003 due to the uncertainty surrounding the HP/Compaq merger. While post

merger quarterly revenue steadily grew to a peak in the second quarter of fiscal 2004, revenue from HP declined slightly

from this peak in the second half of the year. Sales to HP accounted for 58.8% of total net revenue in fiscal 2004, compared 

to 58.4% in fiscal 2003.

Net revenue from Overland branded products during fiscal 2004 grew 20.5% over fiscal 2003 from $65.9 million to $79.4 million.

This increase reflected our increased focus on the Overland branded channel over the past two years. Sales of Overland

branded library products increased 16.7% over fiscal 2003, driven primarily by NEO SERIES library revenue with the largest

increase coming from our domestic customers. Also contributing to the increase in branded channel results was revenue of

$1.7 million generated from our disk-based REO products. Partially offsetting these increases was a 3.0% decrease in revenue

from loader products.

Net revenue from spare parts of $27.7 million in fiscal 2004 were $7.1 million or 34.4% above net revenue of $20.6 million

in fiscal 2003. This increase was driven primarily by our OEM customers.

VR2 revenue during fiscal 2003 amounted to $3.8 million and was comprised of chip sales of $2.0 million, engineering service

fees of $50,000 and royalties of $1.7 million. VR2 revenue during fiscal 2003 amounted to $3.5 million and was comprised 

of chip sales of $785,000, engineering service fees of $775,000 and royalties of $1.9 million.

Gross Profit. Gross profit amounted to $64.7 million in fiscal 2004, an increase of $10.7 million or 19.7% from $54.0 million

in fiscal 2003, resulting from a combination of higher sales volumes somewhat offset by slightly lower gross margins. The

gross margin percentage decreased slightly to 27.1% in fiscal 2004, down from 27.6% in fiscal 2003. The decrease in gross

margin percentage was due primarily to $1.8 million of amortization related to the Okapi technology asset. We also

experienced higher warranty costs during fiscal 2004 as our domestic warranty policy, which includes one year of on-site

warranty with the purchase of many of our products, was extended to our European customers. Although product mix and

channel mix had little effect on the gross margin percentage when compared to the prior year, the increased costs discussed

above were partially offset as material cost reductions outpaced average selling price degradation during fiscal 2004 and 

our pool of relatively fixed overhead costs was spread across a larger revenue base.
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Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses amounted to $30.9 million, representing 13.0% of net

revenue in fiscal 2004, compared to $26.7 million or 13.6% of net revenue in fiscal 2003. The increased expenditures resulted

primarily from salary and related expenses associated with the expansion of our Overland branded sales force, increased

spending associated with lead generation activities and increased market development funding related to our OEM customers.

Also contributing to the increase were incremental expenses associated with promoting awareness around our disk-based

products launched in early fiscal 2004.

Research and Development Expenses. R&D expenses amounted to $7.3 million or 3.0% of net revenue in fiscal 2004,

compared to $7.4 million or 3.8% of net revenue in fiscal 2003. This decrease in absolute dollars was due to the elimination 

of expenses for our wound down Longmont operations combined with the restructure of our advanced research group during

the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003. Also, the fiscal 2003 period included an adjustment to the accrued restructuring charges for

the Longmont facility that did not repeat in fiscal 2004. Offsetting these decreases were increased salaries and related costs

associated with our disk-based development team and increased development expenses associated with our NEO 8000 and

future tape based products.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses amounted to $10.9 million or 4.6% of net

revenue in fiscal 2004, compared to $9.6 million or 4.9% of net revenue in fiscal 2003. This increase was due primarily to

incremental legal fees associated with the Raytheon lawsuit, which was settled in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. Also

contributing to the increase were consulting fees associated with compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 

of 2002, and corporate strategy development.

Interest Income. In fiscal 2004, we generated interest income of $601,000, compared to interest income of $427,000 in 

fiscal 2003. The increase was due to higher average cash balances.

Interest Expense. In fiscal 2004, we incurred interest expense of $68,000, compared to interest expense of $212,000 in 

fiscal 2003. This decrease of interest expense was due to the repayment of all outstanding balances on our long-term debt

arrangement in the second quarter of fiscal 2004.

Other Expense/Income. In fiscal 2004, we generated net other income of $68,000, compared to net other expense of

$332,000 in fiscal 2003. These amounts primarily related to foreign currency transaction fluctuations related to our 

United Kingdom operations.

Provision for Income Taxes. Our fiscal 2004 provision for state federal and foreign income taxes amounted to $5.6 million.

This equated to an effective tax rate of 34.4% in fiscal 2004, flat when compared to fiscal 2003.

Liquidity and Capital Resources At the end of fiscal 2005, we had $76.9 million of cash, cash equivalents and short-term

investments compared to $69.7 million at the end of fiscal 2004. In addition, we had $10.0 million available on our unused

bank line of credit. We believe these resources will be sufficient to fund our operations and to provide for our growth the 

next twelve months and into the foreseeable future. We have no other unused sources of liquidity at this time.

Our primary source of liquidity has historically been cash generated from operations. During fiscals 2005, 2004 and 2003,

we generated $8.2 million, $14.6 million and $9.0 million, respectively, from operations. In addition to cash generated from

operations in fiscal 2003, we raised an aggregate of $20.6 million in net proceeds through the sale of our common stock. The

decrease of $6.4 million in cash provided by operating activities compared to fiscal 2004 was primarily the result of a decrease

in net income and an increase in accounts receivable of $4.0 million. The growth in operating cash flow in fiscal 2004 compared

to fiscal 2003 resulted from significantly improved profitability, a decrease in inventories resulting from better supply chain

and buffer inventory management, as well as a larger tax benefit from an increased volume of stock option exercises.
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Offsetting this was the use of operating cash to fund an increase in income taxes receivable and prepaid third-party warranty

contracts and a decrease in accounts payable. The increase of income taxes receivable was primarily a result of the tax benefit

received from the exercise of stock options. The increase in prepaid third-party warranty contracts is a result of an increased

focus on the sale of warranty upgrades and renewals. In fiscal 2003, operating cash flows were provided by increases in

accounts payable and income taxes payable, net income, depreciation and amortization and tax benefits from the exercise 

of stock options. In fiscal 2003, operating cash was used to fund an increase in accounts receivable and inventories. These

increases in accounts receivable, inventory and accounts payable were related to increases in sales, primarily to HP.

Cash used in investing activities was $18.0 million in fiscal 2005, $59.2 million for fiscal 2004 and $3.7 million for fiscal 2003.

During fiscal 2005, we purchased short-term investments of approximately $114.2 million and received proceeds of approximately

$99.6 million for the maturity and sale of similar investments. During fiscal 2004 we purchased $132.7 million of marketable

debt securities and received proceeds of $75.6 million from the maturity of marketable debt securities. Capital expenditures

during fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 were approximately $3.4 million, $2.1 million and $1.4 million, respectively, and were

comprised primarily of purchases of computers and related equipment. During fiscal 2003, we invested cash of $2.4 million,

in addition to issuing 134,551 shares of Overland common stock, to acquire the Okapi assets.

Cash provided by financing activities was $2.6 million for fiscal 2005, $2.3 million for fiscal 2004, and $22.7 million for 

fiscal 2003. Cash provided by financing activities was due to $2.9 million in proceeds from the issuance of common stock

under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) and upon exercise of stock options; offset by $309,000 used to repurchase

shares of our common stock on the open market under our share repurchase authorization plan. Proceeds from the issuance

of common stock under our ESPP and the exercise of stock options were $6.3 million and $2.8 million in fiscal years 2004 

and 2003, respectively. During fiscal 2003 we received proceeds of $20.6 million from the issuance of common stock sold in 

a private placement. During fiscal 2003, principal payments of $698,000 were made towards the term note and in fiscal 2004

the outstanding balance of $4.0 million was paid in full.

We have a credit facility consisting of a $10.0 million revolving line of credit for working capital purposes that expires on

November 30, 2006. The line of credit is collateralized by a general security interest in our assets. Interest on the line of

credit is set at the bank’s prime rate (6.50% on September 12, 2005) in effect from time to time minus 0.25% or, at our option,

a rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.25%. The loan agreement governing the credit facility requires us to comply with several

financial and non-financial covenants. At the end of fiscal 2005, we were in compliance with all covenants under the facility.

A violation of one or more of these covenants would constitute a default under the credit facility, which would enable the

lender, at its option without notice, to accelerate all then outstanding indebtedness under the credit facility and/or terminate

the lender’s obligation to extend credit under the credit facility. Under the terms of the credit facility, we have a financial

covenant that states we cannot incur a loss for two consecutive quarters. We recorded a loss during the fourth quarter of

fiscal 2005. If we record a loss in the first quarter of fiscal 2006, we would be in default under the terms of the credit facility,

absent a waiver of such covenant. At the end of fiscal 2005, no amounts were outstanding under the credit facility.

On August 11, 2004, our board of directors authorized the purchase of up to $10.0 million of our common stock on the open

market or through negotiated transactions. This repurchase authority allows us to selectively repurchase our common stock

from time to time in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions depending on market price and other factors.

The share repurchase authorization has no stated expiration date. During fiscal 2005, an aggregate of 32,500 shares were

repurchased at a total cost of $309,000.

In August 2005, we used $9.0 million of cash for the purchase of Zetta Systems, Inc.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  We have no off-balance sheet arrangements or significant guarantees to third parties

not fully recorded in our Balance Sheets or fully disclosed in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Contractual Obligations  The following schedule summarizes our contractual obligations to make future payments:
LESS THAN AFTER 5

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS (in thousands) TOTAL 1 YEAR 1-3 YEARS 3-5 YEARS YEARS

Operating leases $ 30,730 $   3,251 $ 6,471 $ 6,728 $ 14,280

Purchase obligations 24,552 24,552 — — —

Total contractual obligations $ 55,282 $ 27,803 $ 6,471 $ 6,728 $ 14,280

Inflation  Inflation has not had a significant impact on our operations during the periods presented. Historically we have

been able to pass on to our customers’ increases in raw material prices caused by inflation. If at any time we cannot pass on

such increases, our margins could suffer. Our exposure to the effects of inflation could be magnified by the concentration of

OEM business.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements  See Note 1 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact our financial position, results of operations or cash flows due to

adverse changes in financial and commodity market prices and rates. We are exposed to market risk in the areas of changes

in United States interest rates and changes in foreign currency exchange rates as measured against the U.S. dollar. These

exposures are directly related to our normal operating and funding activities. Historically, we have not used derivative

instruments or engaged in hedging activities.

Interest Rate Risk. All of our fixed income investments are classified as available-for-sale and therefore reported on the

balance sheet at market value. Changes in the overall level of interest rates affect our interest income that is generated from

our investments. For fiscal 2005, total interest income was $1.6 million with investments yielding an annual average of 2.2%

on a worldwide basis. The interest rate level was up approximately 120 basis points from 1.0% in fiscal 2004. If a comparable

decline in overall interest rates (120 basis points) were to occur in fiscal 2006, our interest income would decline approximately

$923,000, assuming consistent investment levels.

The table below presents the cash, cash equivalents and short-term investment balances and related weighted-average

interest rates at the end of fiscal 2005. The cash, cash equivalents and short-term investment balances approximate 

fair value:
APPROXIMATE WEIGHTED-AVERAGE

(in thousands) MARKET VALUE INTEREST RATE

Cash and cash equivalents $   5,498 2.4%

Short-term investments:

Less than 1 year 2,937 2.1%

Due in 1–2 years 749 6.3%

Due in 2–5 years 1,931 4.1%

Due after 5 years 65,772 3.2%

$ 76,887 3.1%

The table above includes the United States dollar equivalent of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments,

including $117,000, and $903,000 equivalents denominated in the British Pound Sterling and the Euro, respectively.
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Foreign Currency Risk. We conduct business on a global basis and essentially all of our products sold in international

markets are denominated in U.S. dollars. Historically, export sales have represented a significant portion of our sales 

and are expected to continue to represent a significant portion of sales.

Our wholly-owned subsidiaries in the United Kingdom, France and Germany incur costs and maintain inter-company

balances which are denominated in local currencies. As exchange rates vary, these results when translated into U.S. dollars

may vary from expectations and adversely impact overall expected results. The effect of exchange rate fluctuations on our

results during fiscal 2005 was not material.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our consolidated financial statements and supplementary data required by this item are set forth at the pages indicated 

in Item 15(a)(1) and 15(a)(2), respectively.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS 
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures  Under the supervision and with 

the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted

an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)

promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). Based on this evaluation, our

principal executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were

effective as of the end of the period covered by this annual report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  Our management is responsible for establishing

and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)

and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer

and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting

based on the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework,

our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of July 3, 2005.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of July 3, 2005 has been

audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that also audited our consolidated

financial statements included in this annual report, as stated in their report which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Controls  There we no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during our fiscal quarter

ended July 3, 2005 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over

financial reporting. 
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On September 6, 2005, Mr. John Matze, who served as Vice President and Chief Technical Officer of Overland Storage, Inc.

(the Company), indicated his intention to resign from the Company effective September 9, 2005. Mr. Matze was an at-will

employee whose employment could be terminated by him or by the Company for any reason, with or without notice. Mr. Matze

earned an annual salary of $240,000 per year and participated in the Company’s executive bonus plan. Upon the effective date

of his resignation, Mr. Matze was no longer eligible for benefits under his retention agreement dated effective June 25, 2003,

which were payable upon certain terminations following a change in control of the Company.

The foregoing disclosure is provided in lieu of disclosure under Item 1.02 of Form 8-K.

On September 9, 2005, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. W. Michael Gawarecki, our Vice President of

Operations, which was effective as of May 16, 2005. Under the agreement, Mr. Gawarecki is entitled to a base salary of

$246,500 per year and is eligible for discretionary quarterly bonuses under our MBO and Bonus Plan, which bonuses may 

not exceed 40% of Mr. Gawarecki’s quarterly base salary. Mr. Gawarecki was also eligible to receive a special bonus related 

to outsourcing of $100,000, but the conditions for receiving that bonus were not satisfied. The term of the agreement will

continue until June 30, 2006 and will not renew unless agreed by the parties in writing. Mr. Gawarecki’s employment is 

at-will and may be terminated by us or by him at any time and for any reason, with or without cause. If Mr. Gawarecki is

terminated without cause or resigns with good reason, he will be entitled to receive a severance payment equal to 100% of 

his then annual base salary, subject to the execution by him of a general release of claims against us. This severance will be

paid in either a lump-sum amount or in twelve equal monthly installments without interest, at the election of Mr. Gawarecki.

Our obligation to pay severance to Mr. Gawarecki under the agreement terminates upon the occurrence of a change in control.

The foregoing disclosure is provided in lieu of disclosure under Item 1.01 of Form 8-K.

On September 14, 2005, our board of directors designated Ms. Christie Huff, our Vice President of Worldwide Marketing, 

to be an executive officer. Ms. Huff earns an annual salary of $195,000 per year. We also entered into our standard form of

retention agreement with Ms. Huff. Under this agreement, Ms. Huff will receive a severance payment if, within two years 

of the consummation of a change in control of the Company, she is terminated without cause or resigns with good reason.

The severance payment would be based upon Ms. Huff ’s base salary at the time of the consummation of the change in

control or the termination date, whatever is higher, plus her target bonus for the year prior to the consummation of the

change in control. This agreement provides that, upon a change in control, Ms. Huff would be entitled to an amount equal to

her respective base salary plus target bonus. If any portion of any payment under the agreement would constitute an “excess

parachute payment” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code, then that payment will be reduced to

an amount that is one dollar less than the threshold for triggering the tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue

Code. We also entered into our standard indemnification agreement with Ms. Huff. Ms. Huff ’s employment is at-will and

may be terminated by us or her at any time and for any reason, with or without cause.

The foregoing disclosure is provided in lieu of disclosure under Item 1.01 of Form 8-K.

On August 22, 2005, our board of directors established a Special Committee on Shareholder Value On August 22, 2005, our

Board established a Special Committee on Shareholder Value. The members of the Special Committee are Scott McClendon

(Chair), Robert Degan and Michael Norkus. The Special Committee will evaluate and respond to any unsolicited third-party

proposals to acquire the Company. The Special Committee will also advise in the future regarding any Company-solicited

transactions which are out of the ordinary course of business and designed to increase shareholder value. No such transactions

are contemplated at this time. On September 14, 2005, the Board determined that the directors serving on the Special

Committee will receive $500 for each committee meeting attended (whether telephonically or in person) since formation 

of the Special Committee. Such fee will not be paid for committee meetings in joint session with the full Board.

The foregoing disclosure is provided in lieu of disclosure under Item 1.01 and Item 8.01 of Form 8-K.
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ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this item is included under the captions entitled “Election of Directors”, “Executive Officers”,

and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our Proxy Statement to be filed for our 2005 Annual

Meeting of Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

We have adopted the Overland Storage, Inc. Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, a Code that applies to our directors,

officers and employees. A copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is publicly available on our website at

www.overlandstorage.com. If we make any substantive amendments to the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics or grant

any waiver from a provision of the code applying to our principal executive officer or our principal financial or accounting

officer, we will disclose the nature of such amendment or waiver on our website or in a report on Form 8-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is included under the caption entitled “Compensation of Executive Officers”, 

“Non-Employee Director Compensation” and “Report of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors on 

Executive Compensation” in our Proxy Statement to be filed for our 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is

incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this item is included under the caption entitled “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial

Owners and Management” in our Proxy Statement to be filed for our 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is

incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item is included under the caption entitled “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions”

in our Proxy Statement to be filed for our 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is included under the caption entitled “Principal Accountant Fees and Services” 

in our Proxy Statement to be filed for our 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PAR T  I V

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS  AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)(1) Financial Statements.  The following Consolidated Financial Statements of Overland Storage, Inc. and Report 

of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm are included in a separate section of this Report at the page numbers 

so indicated:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-1

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2005 and 2004 F-2

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 F-3

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income

for Years Ended June 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003 F-4

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 F-5

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-6 to F-26

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedule.  Schedules not listed above have been omitted because they are not applicable or are not

required or the information required to be set forth therein is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 20, 2003 among Overland, Okapi Acquisition Co., Inc. and Okapi Software, Inc. (15) ++

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 8, 2005 among Overland, Zeppole Acquisition Corp. and Zetta Systems, Inc. ++

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation. (11)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws. (20)

4.1 Specimen stock certificate. (11)

4.2 Shareholder Rights Agreement dated August 22, 2005 between Overland and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as Transfer Agent. (20)

10.1 Build-to-Suit Single Tenant Lease dated October 12, 2000 between Overland and LBA-VIF One, LLC. (5)

10.2 First Amendment to Lease dated January 18, 2001 between Overland and LBA Overland, LLC, as successor-in-interest to LBA-VIF One, LLC. (8)

10.3 Second Amendment to Lease dated March 8, 2001 between Overland and LBA Overland, LLC. (8)

10.4 Business Loan Agreement dated November 28, 2001 between Overland and Comerica Bank-California. (10)

10.5 Security Agreement dated November 28, 2001 between Overland and Comerica Bank-California. (10)

10.6 Master Revolving Note dated November 28, 2001 between Overland and Comerica Bank-California. (10)

10.7 Variable Rate-Single Payment Note dated November 28, 2001 between Overland and Comerica Bank-California. (10)

10.8 First Modification to Business Loan Agreement dated August 13, 2002 between Overland and Comerica Bank-California. (12)

10.9 Loan Modification to Business Loan Agreement dated August 30, 2002 between Overland and Comerica Bank-California. (21)

10.10 Second Modification to Business Loan Agreement and Addendum A dated September 10, 2003 between Overland and 

Comerica Bank-California. (17)

10.11 Loan Revision/Extension Agreement dated September 10, 2003 between Overland and Comerica Bank-California. (17)

10.12 Third Modification to Business Loan Agreement dated October 25, 2004 between Overland and Comerica Bank-California. (18)

10.13 Loan Revision/Extension Agreement dated October 22, 2004 between Overland and Comerica Bank-California. (18)

10.14 Design Purchase and Services Agreement dated June 15, 2001 between Overland and 

Seagate Removable Storage Solutions LLC. (7) +

10.15 Supply Agreement dated June 15, 2001 between Overland and Seagate Removable Storage Solutions LLC. (7) +

10.16 VR2 Technology License Agreement dated April 27, 2000 between Overland and Storage Technology Corp. (2) +

10.17 Amendment to VR2 Technology License Agreement dated June 18, 2002 between Overland and Storage Technology Corp. (11) +

10.18 Second Amendment to VR2 Technology License Agreement dated November 7, 2003 between Overland and Storage Technology Corp. (17) +

10.19 Amendment Three to VR2 Technology License Agreement dated March 29, 2004 between Overland and Storage Technology Corp. (21) +

10.20 Base Agreement #4902RL1317 dated November 1, 2002 between Overland and International Business Machines Corporation. (17) +

10.21 Product Purchase Agreement No. 1585-042103 dated July 31, 2003 between Overland and Hewlett Packard Company. (17) +

10.22 Manufacturing Services Agreement between Overland Storage, Inc. and Sanmina-SCI Corporation effective as of November 23, 2004. (18) +

10.23 Amendment No. 1 to Manufacturing Services Agreement between Overland Storage, Inc. and Sanmina-SCI Corporation 

effective as of May 30, 2005. +

10.24* Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into between Overland and each of its directors and officers. (10)
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10.25* Form of Retention Agreement entered into between Overland and each of its executive officers. (8)

10.26* Employment Agreement dated March 12, 2001 between Overland and Christopher Calisi. (5)

10.27* Employment Agreement dated December 4, 2000 between Overland and Vernon A. LoForti. (5)

10.28* Offer Letter dated June 27, 2005 between the Company and George Karabatsos. (19)

10.29* Second Amendment to 1995 Stock Option Plan. (1)

10.30* Form of Stock Option Agreement for options granted under the 1995 Stock Option Plan. (8)

10.31* First Amendment to 1997 Executive Stock Option Plan. (1)

10.32* Form of Stock Option Agreement for options granted under the 1997 Executive Stock Option Plan. (8)

10.33* 2000 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated. (11)

10.34* Form of Notice of Stock Option Award and Stock Option Award Agreement for options granted under 2000 Stock Option Plan. (6)

10.35* 2001 Supplemental Stock Option Plan. (9)

10.36* Form of Notice of Stock Option Award and Stock Option Award Agreement for options granted under 2001 Supplemental Stock Option Plan. (11)

10.37* 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended. (18)

10.38* Form of Stock Option Agreement for options granted to senior officers under the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan. (17)

10.39* Form of Stock Option Agreement for options granted to outside directors under the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan. (17)

10.40* Form of Standard Stock Option Agreement for options granted under the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan. (17)

10.41* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for restricted stock granted under the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan.

10.42* Amended and Restated 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

10.43* Summary Sheet of Director and Executive Officer Compensation.

10.44* Employment Agreement dated May 16, 2005 between Overland and W. Michael Gawarecki.

14.1 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. (21)

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

24.1 Power of Attorney (included on signature page).

31.1 Certification of Christopher Calisi, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) 

of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Vernon A. LoForti, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) 

of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, executed 

by Christopher Calisi, President and Chief Executive Officer, and Vernon A. LoForti, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form S-8 Registration Statement No. (333-41754) filed July 19, 2000.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed July 25, 2000.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K filed September 28, 2000.

(4) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form S-8 Registration Statement No. (333-53380) filed January 8, 2001.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed February 14, 2001.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed May 15, 2001.

(7) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed July 2, 2001.

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K filed September 28, 2001.

(9) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form S-8 Registration Statement No. (333-75060) filed December 13, 2001.

(10) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed February 13, 2002.

(11) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K filed September 27, 2002.

(12) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed November 13, 2002.

(13) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed May 12, 2003.

(14) Number intentionally not used.

(15) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K filed September 26, 2003.

(16) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed November 12, 2003.

(17) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed February 10, 2004.

(18) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed February 11, 2005.

(19) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed August 12, 2005.

(20) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed August 26, 2005.

(21) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-K filed September 10, 2004.

+ The Company has requested confidential treatment for certain portions of this Exhibit.
++ Certain schedules and similar attachments have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. 

A copy of the omitted schedules and similar attachments will be provided supplementally to the SEC upon request.
* Management contract or compensation plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

OVERLAND STORAGE, INC.

Dated: September 15, 2005 By: /s/ CHRISTOPHER CALISI

Christopher Calisi

President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints

Christopher Calisi and Vernon A. LoForti, jointly and severally, as his attorney-in-fact, each with the power of substitution,

for him in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with

exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby

ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact, or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done 

by virtue hereof. Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below 

by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/s/ CHRISTOPHER CALISI President, Chief Executive Officer and Director September 15, 2005

Christopher Calisi (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ VERNON A. LoFORTI Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary September 15, 2005

Vernon A. LoForti (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ ROBERT A. DEGAN Director September 15, 2005

Robert A. Degan

/s/ SCOTT McCLENDON Chairman of the Board September 15, 2005

Scott McClendon

/s/ MICHAEL NORKUS Director September 15, 2005

Michael Norkus

/s/ PETER PREUSS Director September 15, 2005

Peter Preuss
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Overland Storage, Inc.:

We have completed an integrated audit of Overland Storage, Inc.’s 2005 consolidated financial statements and of its internal control

over financial reporting as of July 3, 2005 and audits of its 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under

Item 15(a)(1) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Overland Storage, Inc. and its subsidiaries at July 3, 2005

and June 27, 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 3, 2005

in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our

audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide 

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Internal control over financial reporting Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report

on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective internal control

over financial reporting as of July 3, 2005 based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on

those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over

financial reporting as of June 30, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the

COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management’s

assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted 

our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial

reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment,

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we

consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 

of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s

assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because

of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Diego, California

September 14, 2005
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FORM 10-K / CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
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FISCAL YEARS (in thousands) 2005 2004

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $     5,498 $   12,643

Short-term investments 71,389 57,014

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts 

of $298 and $296, respectively 37,703 33,794

Inventories 19,108 15,126

Deferred tax assets 3,741 4,300

Other current assets 11,456 6,515

Total current assets 148,895 129,392

Property and equipment, net 8,758 7,945

Intangible assets 5,193 6,924

Other assets 1,708 590

Total assets $ 164,554 $ 144,851

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $  17,015 $   11,166

Accrued liabilities 13,436 8,535

Accrued payroll and employee compensation 3,973 3,107

Income taxes payable 926 1,058

Accrued warranty 3,182 2,282

Total current liabilities 38,532 26,148

Deferred tax liabilities 1,454 3,134

Other liabilities 3,074 2,055

Total liabilities 43,060 31,337

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)

Shareholders’ equity:

Common stock, no par value, 25,000 shares authorized; 

14,123 and 13,694 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 77,494 73,573

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (312) (256)

Deferred compensation (463) —

Retained earnings 44,775 40,197

Total shareholders’ equity 121,494 113,514

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 164,554 $ 144,851

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

PAGE F-2 SIMPLY PROTECTED
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FISCAL YEARS (in thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003

Net revenue:

Product sales $ 233,695 $ 236,341 $ 193,169

Royalty fees 1,992 1,798 2,712

235,687 238,139 195,881

Cost of revenue 174,770 173,485 141,863

Gross profit 60,917 64,654 54,018

Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 34,382 30,848 26,700

Research and development 10,687 7,259 7,376

General and administrative 12,324 10,949 9,632

57,393 49,056 43,708

Income from operations 3,524 15,598 10,310

Other income (expense):

Interest income 1,613 601 427

Interest expense (76) (68) (212)

Other income (expense), net 7 68 (332)

Income before income taxes 5,068 16,199 10,193

Provision for income taxes 490 5,574 3,511

Net income $     4,578 $   10,625 $     6,682

Net income per share:

Basic $        0.33 $       0.79 $        0.59

Diluted $        0.32 $       0.74 $        0.54

Shares used in computing net income per share:

Basic 13,899 13,384 11,318

Diluted 14,429 14,404 12,314

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ACCUMULATED
OTHER TOTAL

COMPREHENSIVE DEFERRED RETAINED SHAREHOLDERS’
(in thousands) SHARES AMOUNT INCOME (LOSS) COMPENSATION EARNINGS EQUITY

Balance at June 30, 2002 11,003 $ 36,654 $ (278) $ — $ 22,890 $ 59,266

Stock option and purchase plans 391 2,807 — — — 2,807

Sale of common stock 1,430 20,623 — — — 20,623

Stock issued for acquisition of Okapi 135 2,705 — — — 2,705

Tax benefits from exercise of stock options — 1,095 — — — 1,095

Comprehensive income:

Net income — — — — 6,682 6,682

Foreign currency translation — — 86 — — 86

Total comprehensive income — — — — — 6,768

Balance at June 30, 2003 12,959 63,884 (192) — 29,572 93,264

Stock option and purchase plans 735 6,251 — — — 6,251

Tax benefits from exercise of stock options — 3,438 — — — 3,438

Comprehensive income:

Net income — — — — 10,625 10,625

Foreign currency translation — — (31) — — (31) 

Unrealized loss on short-term 

investments, net of tax of $21 — — (33) — — (33)

Total comprehensive income — — — — — 10,561

Balance at June 30, 2004 13,694 73,573 (256) — 40,197 113,514

Stock option and purchase plans 362 2,943 — — — 2,943

Issuance of restricted stock 100 — — — — —

Deferred compensation — 543 — (463) — 80

Stock options issued to consultant — 29 — — — 29

Repurchase of common stock (33) (309) — — — (309)

Tax benefits from exercise of stock options — 715 — — — 715

Comprehensive income:

Net income — — — — 4,578 4,578

Foreign currency translation — — 24 — — 24

Unrealized loss on short-term 

investments, net of tax of $50 — — (80) — — (80)

Total comprehensive income — — — — — 4,522

Balance at June 30, 2005 14,123 $ 77,494 $ (312) $ (463) $ 44,775 $ 121,494

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

COMMON STOCK

FORM 10-K / CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’  EQUITY 
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Overland Storage, Inc.
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FORM 10-K / CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Overland Storage, Inc.

FISCAL YEARS (in thousands) 2005 2004 2003

Operating activities:
Net income $       4,578 $     10,625 $   6,682

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 4,289 4,164 2,354

Deferred tax provision (1,071) (885) (843)

Provision for losses on accounts receivable 97 10 146

Tax benefits from exercise of stock options 715 3,438 1,095

Stock-based compensation 109 — —

Realized gain on short-term investments (2) — —

Amortization of discount on short-term investments 147 29 —

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (4,006) (1,954) (10,577)

Inventories (3,982) 4,136 (1,756)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 11,650 (218) 10,747

Accrued payroll and employee compensation 866 (87) 476

Other assets and liabilities, net (5,172) (4,660) 709

Net cash provided by operating activities 8,218 14,598 9,033

Investing activities:
Purchases of short-term investments (114,218) (132,666) —

Proceeds from maturities of short-term investments 95,252 75,569 —

Proceeds from sales of short-term investments 4,316 — —

Capital expenditures (3,406) (2,141) (1,354)

Loss on disposal of property and equipment 35 — —

Payments made in association with acquisition of Okapi — — (2,361)

Net cash used in investing activities (18,021) (59,238) (3,715)

Financing activities:
Payments on long-term debt — (3,957) (698)

Proceeds from the sale of common stock — — 20,623

Proceeds from the exercise of stock options and the sale of stock under 

the employee stock purchase plan 2,943 6,251 2,807

Repurchase of common stock (309) — —

Net cash provided by financing activities 2,634 2,294 22,732

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 24 (31) 86

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (7,145) (42,377) 28,136

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 12,643 55,020 26,884

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $      5,498 $    12,643 $ 55,020

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for income taxes $       2,555 $      4,590 $   1,649

Cash paid for interest $             — $             75 $       199

Non-cash investing activities:
Common stock issued for acquisition of Okapi $            — $             — $   2,705

Change in net unrealized loss on short-term investments $            80 $             33 $         —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FORM 10-K / NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F INANCIAL STATEMENTS
Overland Storage, Inc.

NOTE 1. OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General Overland Storage, Inc. (We, Overland or the Company) was incorporated on September 8, 1980 under the laws of

the State of California. For 25 years we have delivered data protection solutions designed for backup and recovery to ensure

business continuity. Historically, we have focused on delivering a portfolio of tape automation solutions including loader 

and library systems designed for small business and midrange computing environments. Beginning with the June 2003

acquisition of Okapi Software, Inc. (Okapi), a privately-owned company based in San Diego, California, we expanded our

product offerings to include a family of intelligent disk-based backup and recovery appliances to complement our tape solutions.

The Company operates and reports using a 52-53 week fiscal year ending on the Sunday closest to June 30. For ease of

presentation, the Company’s fiscal year-end is deemed to be June 30. For example, references to fiscal 2005 refer to the

fiscal year ending on July 3, 2005. Fiscal year 2005 included 53 weeks. Fiscal years 2004 and 2003 each included 52 weeks.

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly

owned subsidiaries, Overland Storage (Europe) Ltd., Overland Storage SARL, Overland Storage GmbH, Tecmar, Inc., 

Okapi Acquisition Co., Inc. and Overland Storage Export Limited, a foreign sales corporation. All significant intercompany

accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Management Estimates and Assumptions The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 

of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates have 

been prepared on the basis of the most current and best available information and actual results could differ from those

estimates. Significant estimates made by management include revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts,

warranty accrual, valuation of intangible assets, long-lived assets and valuation allowance on deferred tax assets.

Reclassification of Prior Year Presentation Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the

current year presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of operations. During fiscal 2005, 

the Company concluded that it was appropriate to classify its auction rate municipal bonds as short-term investments.

Previously, such investments had been classified as cash and cash equivalents. Accordingly, the Company has revised the

classification to report these securities under the short-term investments caption in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for

fiscal years 2005 and 2004. Corresponding adjustments have also been made to the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

for fiscal years 2005 and 2004, to reflect the gross purchases and sales of these securities as investing activities rather than

as a component of cash and cash equivalents. This change in classification does not affect previously reported cash flows

from operations or from financing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, or the previously reported

Consolidated Statements of Operations for any period.

For fiscal 2004, $46.0 million of these short-term investments were previously classified as cash and cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition Revenue on direct product sales (excluding sales to distributors and certain OEM customers) is

recognized upon shipment of products to such customers. These customers are not entitled to any specific right of return or

price protection, except for any defective product that may be returned under the Company’s warranty policy. Title and risk

of loss transfer to the customer when the product leaves the Company’s dock. Product sales to distribution customers are

subject to certain rights of return, stock rotation privileges and price protection. Because we are unable to estimate our

exposure for returned product or price adjustments, revenue from shipments to these customers is not recognized until the

related products are in turn sold to the ultimate customer by the distributor. As part of our existing agreements with certain
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OEM customers, the Company ships products to various distribution hubs around the world and retains ownership of 

that inventory until it is pulled by these OEM customers to fulfill their customer orders, at which time, generally the 

same business day, the Overland sale is recorded.

The Company has entered into various licensing agreements relating to its Variable Rate Randomizer (VR2) technology.

These agreements typically call for royalty fees based on sales by licensees of products containing VR2. Royalties on sales 

by licensees of products containing VR2 are recorded when earned, generally in the period during which the licensee ships

the products containing VR2 technology. In certain instances, the customer has elected to purchase, from the Company, the

Applications Specific Integrated Circuit (ASIC) chips embodying VR2, which are priced to include the cost of the chip plus 

an embedded royalty fee. In these instances, revenue on ASIC chip sales are recorded as product revenue when earned,

which is upon the shipment of the underlying ASIC chip incorporating the VR2 technology to the customer.

Shipping and Handling Amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling are included in product sales and costs

incurred related to shipping and handling are included in cost of revenue.

Research and Development Costs Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. The costs for the

development of new software products and substantial enhancements to existing software products are expensed until

technological feasibility has been established, at which time any additional costs would be capitalized in accordance with

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of Financial Standards (SFAS) No. 86, Accounting for the Costs 

of Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed. Because we believe our current process for developing software is

essentially completed concurrently with the establishment of technological feasibility, which occurs upon the completion 

of a working model, no costs have been capitalized for any of the periods presented.

Advertising Costs Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003

were $1.5 million, $1.7 million and $1.2 million, respectively.

Warranty Costs The Company generally provides a three-year advance replacement return-to-factory warranty on its 

NEO SERIES, PowerLoader and LoaderXpress products and a one year advance replacement return-to-factory warranty 

on its REO SERIES. The Company also provides on-site service for the first warranty year of the NEO SERIES products for

which it contracts with third-party service providers. For most products, the Company offers a program called XchangeNOW

as part of its return-to-factory warranty which enables customers to receive an advance replacement unit shipped within two

business days after placing a service request. The customer ships the defective unit back to the Company using the shipping

materials from the replacement unit. The Company records a provision for estimated future warranty costs at the time 

of shipment for both the return-to-factory and on-site warranties. Separately priced on-site warranties are offered for sale 

to customers of other product lines. The Company contracts with outside vendors to provide service relating to all on-site

warranties. Warranty revenue and amounts paid in advance to outside service organizations are recognized in the financial

statements in revenue and cost of revenue, respectively, over the warranty period.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, short-term

investments, accounts receivable and accounts payable. The carrying amounts of these instruments approximate fair value

because of their short-term maturities and variable interest rates. Fair values of the investments in debt securities are

estimated based on quoted market prices for these securities.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss Comprehensive income for the Company includes net income, foreign currency

translation adjustments and unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities, which are charged or credited to accumulated

other comprehensive income within shareholders’ equity. For fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, the components of other

accumulated comprehensive loss were as follow:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004 2003

Foreign currency translation adjustments $ (199) $ (223) $ (192)

Unrealized loss on short-term investments, 

net of tax of $71 and $21, respectively (113) (33) —

Total other accumulated comprehensive loss $ (312) $ (256) $ (192)

Segment Data The Company reports segment data based on the management approach. The management approach

designates the internal reporting that is used by management for making operating and investment decisions and

evaluating performance as the source of the Company’s reportable segments. The Company uses one measurement of

profitability and does not disaggregate its business for internal reporting. Based on the criteria of SFAS No. 131, Disclosures

about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, the Company has determined that it operates in one segment

providing data storage solutions for mid-range computer networks. The Company discloses information about products and

services, geographic areas and major customers.

Concentration of Credit Risks Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit

risk consist primarily of cash equivalents, short-term investments and trade accounts receivable, which are generally not

collateralized. The Company limits its exposure to credit loss by placing its cash equivalents and short-term investment with

high credit quality financial institutions and investing in high quality short-term debt instruments. The Company performs

ongoing credit evaluations of its customers, generally requires no collateral and maintains allowances for potential credit

losses and sales returns.

The Company’s largest single customer accounted for approximately 54.3%, 58.8% and 58.4% of sales in fiscal years 2005,

2004 and 2003, respectively, and approximately 48.9%, 44.2% and 51.9% of accounts receivable as of the end of fiscal years

2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. No other customer accounted for 10% or more of sales in any of the three years presented.
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Information about Geographic Areas The Company markets its products domestically and internationally, with its

principal international market being Europe. The tables below contain information about the geographical areas in which

the Company operates. Revenue is attributed to the location to which the product was shipped. Long-lived assets are based

on location of domicile.

(in thousands) NET REVENUES LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Fiscal 2005

United States $   97,156 $ 13,276

United Kingdom 65,845 667

Rest of Europe 28,464 8

Singapore 21,822 —

Other foreign countries 22,400 —

$ 235,687 $ 13,951

Fiscal 2004

United States $ 121,641 $ 14,048

United Kingdom 67,209 821

Rest of Europe 24,355 —

Singapore 9,415 —

Other foreign countries 15,519 —

$ 238,139 $ 14,869

Fiscal 2003

United States $ 110,790 $ 16,335

United Kingdom 52,176 819

Rest of Europe 20,611 —

Singapore 2,702 —

Other foreign countries 9,602 —

$ 195,881 $ 17,154

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments Highly liquid investments with insignificant interest rate risk and original

maturities of three months or less, when purchased, are classified as cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are comprised 

of money market funds. The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturities of these instruments.

Investments with maturities greater than three months are classified as short-term investments. The Company manages its

cash equivalents and short-term investments as a single portfolio of highly marketable securities, all of which are intended

to be available for the Company’s current operations. As such, all of the Company’s short-term investments are classified as

available-for-sale and are reported at fair value, generally as determined by quoted market prices, with any unrealized gains

and losses, net of tax, recorded as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in shareholders’

equity.  The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method. Investments in auction rate securities are

recorded at cost, which approximates fair value due to their variable interest rates, which typically reset every 27 to 34 days,

and, despite the long-term nature of their stated contractual maturities, the Company has the ability to quickly liquidate

these securities.
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Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts The Company records accounts receivable at invoice

amount and does not charge interest thereon. The Company estimates its allowance for doubtful accounts based on an

assessment of the collectibility of specific accounts and the overall condition of the accounts receivable portfolio. When

evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts, the Company analyzes specific trade and other receivables,

historical bad debts, customer credits, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness, current economic trends and

changes in customers’ payment terms and/or patterns. The Company reviews the allowance for doubtful accounts on a

quarterly basis and records adjustments as considered necessary. Customer accounts are written-off against the allowance

for doubtful accounts when an account is considered uncollectible.

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in-first-out method) or market.

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation expense is computed using the

straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset 

or the term of the lease. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Machinery and equipment 3-5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Computer equipment 1-5 years

Expenditures for normal maintenance and repair are charged to expense as incurred, and improvements are capitalized.

Upon the sale or retirement of property or equipment, the asset cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from

the respective accounts and any gain or loss is included in the results of operations.

Long-Lived Assets The Company evaluates the recoverability of long-lived assets, including property and equipment 

and certain identifiable intangible assets, in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal 

of Long-Lived Assets, which it adopted on July 1, 2002. SFAS No. 144 requires the Company to review for impairment 

of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not 

be recoverable. Factors considered important which could trigger an impairment review include:

• significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results;

• significant changes in the manner of use of the assets or the strategy for our overall business;

• significant decrease in the market value of the assets; and

• significant negative industry or economic trends.

When the Company determines that the carrying amount of long-lived assets may not be recoverable based upon the

existence of one or more of the above indicators, it assesses the assets for impairment based on the estimated future

undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If the carrying amount 

of an asset exceeds its estimated future undiscounted cash flows, an impairment loss is recorded for the excess of the asset’s

carrying amount over its fair value. Fair value is generally determined based on the estimated future discounted cash flows

over the remaining useful life of the asset using a discount rate determined by management to be commensurate with the

risk inherent in the Company’s current business model. The assumptions supporting the cash flows, including the discount

rates, are determined using management’s best estimates as of the date of the impairment review. If these estimates or 

their related assumptions change in the future, the Company may be required to record additional impairment charges

for these assets and future results of operations could be adversely affected. The Company has not recorded any material

impairment losses.

Deferred Rent Rent expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The difference between rent

expense and amounts paid under the lease agreements is recorded in other liabilities in the accompanying balance sheets.
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Foreign Currency Translation The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries, for which the functional currency is the 

local currency, are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date for assets and liabilities 

and a weighted-average exchange rate during the year for revenue, expenses, gains and losses. Translation adjustments 

are recorded as accumulated other comprehensive income within shareholders’ equity. Gains or losses from foreign currency

transactions are recognized currently in income. Such transactions resulted in a gain of $62,000, a gain of $69,000 and 

a loss of $338,000 for the fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Income Taxes The Company provides for income taxes utilizing the liability method. Under the liability method, a deferred

tax asset and/or liability is computed for both the expected future impact of differences between the financial statement and

tax basis of assets and liabilities, and for the expected future tax benefit to be derived from tax credits and loss carryforwards.

Current income tax expense or benefit represents the amount of income taxes expected to be payable or refundable for the

current year. A valuation allowance is established when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some

portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Net Income per Share Basic earnings per share is computed based on the weighted-average number of shares of common

stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed based on the weighted-average number of

shares of common stock outstanding during the period increased by the weighted-average number of dilutive common 

stock equivalents outstanding during the period, using the treasury stock method. Anti-dilutive common stock equivalents

excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share amounted to 1.3 million, 512,000 and 6,000 in fiscal years 

2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

A reconciliation of the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003

Net income $   4,578 $ 10,625 $   6,682

Basic:

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding 13,899 13,384 11,318

Basic net income per share $    0.33 $     0.79 $     0.59

Diluted:

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding 13,899 13,384 11,318

Common stock equivalents using the treasury stock method 530 1,020 996

Shares used in computing diluted net income per share 14,429 14,404 12,314

Diluted net income per share $    0.32 $     0.74 $     0.54

Stock-Based Compensation During fiscal 2005, the Company had stock-based compensation plans as described in 

detail in Note 9. The Company accounts for options issued to employees, directors and officers under those plans under 

the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board (APB) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to

Employees, and related interpretations. Generally, no stock-based employee compensation expense is recognized, as all

options granted under those plans have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the underlying common stock 

at the date of grant. No compensation expense has been recognized for purchase rights under the Company’s Employee 

Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) as they have been granted in accordance with the terms of the ESPP. The Company accounts

for stock option grants and similar equity instruments granted to non-employees under the fair value method, in accordance

with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That are Issued to Other Than

Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services and SFAS No. 123, Accounting and Disclosure 

of Stock-Based Compensation.
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Compensation expense related to issuances of fixed restricted stock awards are recorded, on a ratable basis over the vesting

period, at the fair market value of the stock at the date of grant. No compensation expense is recorded for restricted stock

awards in which the exercise price equals or exceeds the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant.

The Company measures compensation expense for its stock-based employee compensation plans using the intrinsic value

method and provides pro forma disclosures of net income (loss) and earnings per share as if the fair value-based method 

had been applied in measuring compensation expense.

The fair values of options granted and each share purchase right under the ESPP during the years ended, as reported below,

were estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

STOCK OPTION PLANS ESPP PLANS

2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003

Expected volatility 77.0% 79.0% 82.0% 38.4% 57.0% 79.0%

Risk-free interest rate 3.7% 4.2% 3.7% 1.9% 3.7% 3.7%

Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Expected term (in years) 5.7% 7.0% 7.0% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

The weighted-average estimated fair value of employee stock options, granted with an exercise price equal to the fair 

value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant during fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $8.92, $13.76 

and $10.02 per share, respectively. The weighted-average estimated fair value of employee stock options, granted with 

an exercise price above the fair value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant during 2005 was $8.18. The

weighted-average estimated fair value of each share purchase right granted during fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 

was $3.24, $4.71 and $4.65 per share, respectively.

Had compensation expense for the Company’s employee stock-based compensation awards issued during fiscal years 2005,

2004 and 2003 been determined based on a fair value method, the Company’s net income and net income per share would

have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003

Net income, as reported $   4,578 $ 10,625 $  6,682

Deduct: 

Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under 

fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (8,293) (4,941) (4,862)

Pro forma net (loss) income $ (3,715) $ 5,684 $ 1,820

Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic – as reported $     0.33 $     0.79 $    0.59

Basic – pro forma $  (0.27) $    0.42 $    0.16

Diluted – as reported $     0.32 $    0.74 $   0.54

Diluted – pro forma $  (0.27) $    0.39 $    0.15

PAGE F-12 SIMPLY PROTECTED



On July 1, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the accelerated vesting of all unvested stock options, held by

the Company’s officers and employees, with an exercise price at or above $12.00 per share, effective July 3, 2005. The stock

option acceleration program does not apply to stock options held by the Company’s non-employee directors. The accelerated

options were issued under the 2000 Stock Option Plan, the 2001 Supplemental Stock Option Plan and the 2003 Equity

Incentive Plan. This accelerated vesting affected options to purchase up to an aggregate of 509,192 shares of the Company’s

common stock, held by 147 employees, all of which became exercisable immediately. In connection with the acceleration of

vesting of options held by the Company’s executive officers, each executive officer agreed not to sell or transfer any shares

subject to accelerated vesting until the original vesting date would have occurred based on the original vesting schedule

(without giving effect to any future termination of service). The primary purpose of the accelerated vesting was to eliminate

future stock-based employee compensation expense of approximately $4.5 million, net of estimated forfeitures, the Company

would otherwise have to record in the income statement over a period of three years beginning in fiscal year 2006 pursuant

to the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004) (123(R)), Share-Based Payment. For fiscal 2005, the Company’s

pro forma net loss includes a pro-forma charge of $4.1 million, net of statutory taxes of $723,000, related to this acceleration.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs – 

an Amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4. SFAS No. 151 clarifies that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight,

handling costs and spoilage should be expensed as incurred and not included in overhead. Further, SFAS No. 151 requires

that allocation of fixed production overhead to conversion costs should be based on normal capacity of the production

facilities. The provisions in SFAS No. 151 are effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after 

June 15, 2005 and must be applied prospectively. The Company believes that its current accounting policies comply with 

the new rules and the adoption of this statement will not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial

position or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FSP 109-2, Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign Earnings Repatriation

Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, effective upon issuance. The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004

provides for an elective one-time tax deduction of 85% on certain foreign earnings that are repatriated. The adoption of 

FSP 109-2 is not expected to have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R) to expand and clarify SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based

Compensation, in several areas. SFAS No. 123(R) requires companies to measure the cost of employee services received in

exchange for an award of an equity instrument based on the grant-date fair value of the award. The cost is recognized over

the requisite service period (usually the vesting period) for the estimated number of instruments where service is expected 

to be rendered. The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) in the first quarter of fiscal 2006.

SFAS No. 123(R) permits public companies to adopt its requirements using one of two methods:

• A “modified prospective” method in which compensation cost is recognized beginning with the effective date

(a) based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) for all share-based payments granted after the effective

date and (b) based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) for all awards granted to employees prior to the

effective date of SFAS No. 123(R) that remain unvested on the effective date; or

• A “modified retrospective” method which includes the requirements of the modified prospective method

described above, but also permits entities to restate based on the amounts previously recognized under

SFAS No. 123 for purposes of pro forms disclosures either (a) all prior periods or (b) prior interim periods 

of the year of adoption.

We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective method effective July 4, 2005.
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As permitted by SFAS No. 123, we currently account for share-based payments to employees using APB No. 25’s intrinsic

value method and, as such, generally recognize no compensation cost for employee stock options. Accordingly, the adoption 

of SFAS No. 123(R)’s fair value method will have a significant impact on our results of operations, although it will have 

no impact on our cash position. The impact of adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) cannot be predicted at this time because it 

will depend on levels of share-based payments granted in the future. SFAS No. 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax

deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating

cash flow as required under current literature. This requirement may reduce net operating cash flows and increase net

financing cash flows in the periods after adoption. We cannot estimate what those amounts will be in the future because 

they depend on, among other things, when employees exercise stock options, and whether we have a sufficient Additional 

Paid-In-Capital windfall pool to cover potential expense.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets – an Amendment of APB Opinion 

No. 29, which eliminates the exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a

general exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange 

has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the

exchange. SFAS No. 153 will be effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after 

June 15, 2005. The Company believes that adoption of SFAS No. 153 will have no impact on the Company’s financial 

position or results of operations.

NOTE 2. ACQUISIT ION OF CERTAIN ASSETS

In June 2003, the Company acquired all of the assets and assumed all of the liabilities of Okapi Software, Inc., a privately

held company based in San Diego, California. This acquisition was accounted for as an asset acquisition in accordance with

SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations include the

results of Okapi from the date of acquisition.

The aggregate purchase price for the assets of Okapi of $5.4 million was comprised of the issuance of 134,551 shares of

Overland stock valued at $2.7 million, cash of $2.5 million, and $159,000 of acquisition related costs. Of the $5.4 million

purchase price, $41,000 was allocated to the net tangible liabilities acquired and $9.0 million, which includes a deferred tax

liability, was allocated to acquired technology. As this transaction was accounted for as a tax-free exchange, the Company

recorded a deferred tax liability of $3.6 million. The acquired technology represented by the intangible asset is amortized

over a five year life.

During fiscal 2004, the Company was able to claim certain tax benefits related to the Okapi acquisition on its fiscal year

2003 tax return that were not allocated at the time of the purchase. As a result, in fiscal 2004, the purchase price of the

intangible asset was reduced by $263,000 to reflect these tax benefits including a reduction of the related deferred tax

liability. The adjusted purchase price of the intangible asset will be amortized over four years, the remaining useful life 

of the asset.

PAGE F-14 SIMPLY PROTECTED



NOTE 3. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

The following table summarizes short-term investments by security type:
GROSS GROSS

AMORTIZED UNREALIZED UNREALIZED ESTIMATED
(in thousands) COST GAINS LOSSES FAIR VALUE

Fiscal 2005

Asset-backed securities $ 18,208 $ — $ 155 $ 18,053

United States government and agency securities 2,000 — 22 1,978

State and municipal securities 51,365 1 8 51,358

$ 71,573 $  1 $ 185 $ 71,389 

Fiscal 2004

Asset-backed securities $   3,255 $ — $   21 $   3,234

United States government and agency securities 2,000 — 22 1,978

State and municipal securities 51,813 — 11 51,802

$ 57,068 $ — $   54 $ 57,014

The following table summarizes the contractual maturities of the Company’s short-term investments:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004

Less than one year $   2,937 $  4,001

Due in one to two years 749 3,754

Due in two to five years 1,931 —

Due after five years 65,772 49,259

$ 71,389 $ 57,014

Asset-backed securities have been allocated within the contractual maturities table based upon the set maturity date of 

the security. Gross realized gains on short-term investments are included in interest income and were approximately $2,000

in fiscal 2005. In fiscal 2005, the Company did not record any realized losses on its short-term investments. In fiscal 2004,

the Company did not record any realized gains or losses on its short-term investments.

As of the end of fiscal 2005, the Company had one investment that has been in a continuous unrealized loss position for 

a period of 12 months. The Company determined that the impairment was not considered to be other-than-temporary, in

accordance with EITF 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments,

and as such, the cost of the investment was not adjusted at the balance sheet date.
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NOTE 4. COMPOSIT ION OF CERTAIN F INANCIAL STATEMENT CAPTIONS

The following table summarizes inventories:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004

Raw materials $   8,550 $   6,266

Work in process 1,997 2,444

Finished goods 8,561 6,416

$ 19,108 $ 15,126

The following table summarizes other current assets:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004

Income tax receivable $   4,177 $ 3,108

Non-trade accounts receivable 3,071 710

Prepaid third party service contract 2,896 1,232

Prepaid insurance and services 1,213 990

Other 99 475

$ 11,456 $ 6,515

The following table summarizes property and equipment:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004

Machinery and equipment $   6,368 $     5,542

Computer equipment 9,414 8,764

Furniture and fixtures 1,309 1,194

Leasehold improvements 3,814 3,815

20,905 19,315

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (12,147) (11,370)

$    8,758 $     7,945 

Depreciation and amortization expense was $2.6 million, $2.4 million and $2.4 million in fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 

2003, respectively.

The following table summarizes other assets:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004

Prepaid third party service contract $ 1,301 $ 553

Software license 350 —

Other 57 37

$ 1,708 $ 590
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The following table summarizes accrued liabilities:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004

Accrued operating expenses $  3,838 $ 2,253

Deferred revenue – Service contracts 3,484 1,807

Third-party service contracts payable 3.238 1,295

Deferred revenue – Distributors 1,186 1,333

Accrued Market Development Funds 621 1,105

VAT & Sales taxes payable 251 419

Other 818 323

$ 13,436 $ 8,535

The following table summarizes other liabilities:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004

Deferred revenue – Service contracts $ 1,978 $ 1,284

Deferred rent 990 771

Other 106 —

$ 3,074 $ 2,055

As of fiscal 2005 and 2004, the accounts receivable balances consist entirely of accounts receivable trade balances, 

net of allowance for doubtful accounts. The following table summarizes the changes in allowance for doubtful accounts:

BALANCE AT ADDITIONS WRITE-OFFS, DEDUCTIONS BALANCE
BEGINNING OF CHARGED TO NET OF CREDITED TO AT END

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) YEAR INCOME RECOVERIES INCOME OF YEAR

2005 $ 296 $  97 $  95 $  — $ 298

2004 413 114 126 105 296

2003 652 267 506 — 413

NOTE 5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Intangible assets consist of the following: 

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004

Acquired technology $  8,720 $  8,720

Accumulated amortization (3,527) (1,796)

$  5,193 $  6,924

Amortization expense of intangible assets was $1.7 million and $1.8 million, during fiscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The technology acquired from Okapi is being amortized over five years. Estimated amortization expense for this intangible

asset will be approximately $1.7 million in each of the Company’s fiscal years 2006, 2007 and 2008.
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NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT 

The Company has a credit facility consisting of a $10.0 million revolving line of credit for working capital purposes that

expires on November 30, 2006. The line of credit is collateralized by substantially all of the Company’s assets. Interest on 

the line of credit is set at the bank’s prime rate (6.25% on June 30, 2005) in effect from time to time minus 0.25% or, at the

Company’s option, a rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.25%. The loan agreement that governs the credit facility contains certain

financial and non-financial covenants. At June 30, 2005, the Company was in compliance with all covenants under the

agreement. At the end of fiscal years 2005 and 2004, no amounts were outstanding under the credit facility.

NOTE 7. INCOME TAXES

The components of income before income taxes were as follows:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004 2003

Domestic $ 3,493 $ 15,003 $   8,371

Foreign 1,575 1,196 1,822

$ 5,068 $ 16,199 $ 10,193

The provision for income taxes includes the following:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004 2003

Current:

Federal $  131 $ 5,293 $ 3,176

State 115 1,171 653

Foreign 713 377 525

Total current 959 6,841 4,354

Deferred:

Federal (366) (1,054) (679)

State (59) (213) (164)

Foreign (44) — —

Total deferred (469) (1,267) (843)

Total provision for income taxes $  490 $ 5,574 $ 3,511
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A reconciliation of income taxes computed by applying the federal statutory income tax rate of 34% to income before income

taxes to the total income tax provision reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations is as follows:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004 2003

U.S. Federal income tax at statutory rate $ 1,723 $ 5,493 $ 3,466

State income taxes, net of federal benefit 37 633 383

Extraterritorial income exclusion benefit (503) (374) (246)

Tax exempt interest (363) (68) —

Favorable IRS settlement and statute expirations (345) — —

California R&D tax credit (136) — —

Permanent differences 43 53 45

Other, net 34 (163) (137)

Total provision for income taxes $    490 $ 5,574 $ 3,511

Deferred income taxes comprised:

FISCAL YEAR (in thousands) 2005 2004

Deferred tax assets:

Inventory $  1,152 $  1,645

Warranty reserves 1,951 2,078

Tax credits 573 —

Vacation and deferred compensation 608 441

State income taxes 8 190

Restructuring reserve 243 —

Allowance for doubtful accounts 114 115

Intangible assets 43 60

Other 101 80

Gross deferred tax asset 4,793 4,609

Deferred tax liabilities:

Purchased intangible assets (1,975) (2,678)

Property and equipment depreciation (531) (721)

Other — (44)

Gross deferred tax liability (2,506) (3,443)

Net deferred tax asset $  2,287 $  1,166

No valuation allowance was recorded as of fiscal 2005 or 2004, as the Company believes it is more likely than not the

deferred tax assets will be realized.

At June 30, 2005, the Company has a California research and development tax credit carryforward totaling approximately

$30,000 which can be carried forward indefinitely. In addition, the Company has a Federal foreign tax credit carryforward

totaling approximately $555,000, which will begin expiring in 2025, unless previously utilized.
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NOTE 8. COMMON STOCK

On August 11, 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the purchase of up to $10.0 million of its common stock 

on the open market or through negotiated transactions. This repurchase authority allows the Company to selectively

repurchase its common stock from time to time in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions depending 

on market price and other factors. During fiscal 2005, an aggregate of 32,500 shares were repurchased at a cost of

approximately $309,000 pursuant to this authority.

On May 15, 2003, the Company sold 1.4 million shares of common stock in a private placement transaction. The stock was

sold at $15.39, a 10 percent discount to the closing market price on May 12, 2003. Gross proceeds to the Company were 

$22.0 million with net proceeds after commission and offering expenses of $20.6 million. Proceeds have been and will be used

by the Company to fund working capital needs in support of the growth of its business and for general corporate purposes.

NOTE 9. EQUITY BASED COMPENSATION

Stock Option Plans The Company has eight active stock option plans, administered by a Committee of the Board of

Directors, which provide for the issuance of options to employees, officers, directors and consultants. As of June 30, 2005, 

the Company had reserved 7.2 million shares of common stock for issuance under the 1991 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan

(1991 Plan), 1993 Stock Option Plan, 1993-A Stock Option Plan, 1995 Stock Option Plan, 1997 Executive Stock Option Plan,

2000 Stock Option Plan, 2001 Supplemental Stock Option Plan (2001 Plan), and the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (2003 Plan)

(collectively, the Option Plans). The Option Plans provide for the granting of stock options; in addition, the 2003 Plan

provides for the granting of restricted stock and stock appreciation rights (collectively, stock awards). The exercise price of

incentive stock options must be equal to at least the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date the option

is granted, and the exercise price of non-statutory stock options may be no less than 85% of the fair market value of the

Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The exercise price of any option granted to a 10% shareholder may not be 

less than 110% of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The Option Plans have been

approved by shareholders with the exception of the 1991 Plan and the 2001 Plan. Currently, the Company may grant new

awards only from the 2003 Plan. Certain options issued under selected plans call for 100% vesting of outstanding options

upon a change of control of the Company or upon death or disability of the optionee. Options granted during the last four

fiscal years generally vest over a three year period. Options granted in prior years generally vested at a rate of 25% per year

over a four-year period from the date of grant. On July 1, 2005, the Board of Directors approved the accelerated vesting of

certain outstanding options (Note 1). Options generally expire after a period not to exceed ten years, except in the event of

termination, whereupon vested shares must be exercised generally within three months under the 2003 Plan and within 

30 days under the other Option Plans, or upon death or disability, where an extended six- or twelve-month exercise period 

is specified. As of June 30, 2005, approximately 3.1 million shares were reserved for issuance upon exercise of outstanding

options and approximately 452,000 were available for grant under the Option Plans.
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The stock option activity is summarized below:
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE

(shares in thousands) SHARES EXERCISE PRICE

Options outstanding at fiscal 2002 2,791 $   7.83

Granted 923 13.41

Exercised (351) 6.85

Canceled/forfeited (108) 8.96

Options outstanding at fiscal 2003 3,255 9.48

Granted 403 18.83

Exercised (683) 8.19

Canceled/forfeited (142) 13.42

Options outstanding at fiscal 2004 2,833 10.92

Granted 757 13.28

Exercised (288) 7.89

Canceled/forfeited (189) 14.80

Options outstanding at fiscal 2005 3,113 11.54

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of fiscal 2005:

(shares in thousands)

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE
RANGE OF SHARES REMAINING WEIGHTED-AVERAGE SHARES WEIGHTED-AVERAGE
EXERCISE PRICES OUTSTANDING CONTRACTUAL LIFE EXERCISE PRICE EXERCISABLE EXERCISE PRICE

$ 2.00 – 8.66 1,143 5.08 $   7.41 1,143 $  7.41

9.31 – 11.83 543 7.28 10.16 379 9.85

12.37 – 19.33 1,337 8.27 15.05 1,309 15.06

19.75 – 21.76 90 8.20 20.21 90 20.21

2.00 – 21.76 3,113 6.92 11.54 2,921 11.55

Restricted Stock Awards In April 2005, the Company issued two restricted stock awards for 50,000 shares each to its 

CEO. At June 30, 2005, no shares were vested and 100,000 shares were subject to repurchase. The awards are described

separately below:

The first award vests as follows: 16,667 shares, 16,667 shares and 16,666 shares on July 1, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively

(the Service Award). In accordance with APB No. 25, the Service award is a fixed award and, as such, compensation expense 

is recorded for the fair value of the Company’s common stock less any amounts paid by the employee. The fair value of the

Service Award is $10.86 per share (the market value of the stock on the date of issuance) or $543,000, which was recorded 

as deferred compensation associated with this issuance and is being amortized to compensation expense ratably over the

service period. Compensation expense recorded in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations for fiscal 2005

totaled approximately $80,000. The weighted-average grant date fair value of this restricted stock award was $10.86, 

as calculated under SFAS No. 123.
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The second award vests as follows: 12,500 shares, 12,500 shares and 25,000 shares, if the volume weighted daily average

stock price of the Company for ten consecutive trading days reaches $20.00, $25.00 and $30.00 (collectively the target stock

price), respectively, on or before January 1, 2008 (the Market Award). Based upon the market values of the Company’s

common stock, through June 30, 2005, satisfaction of the vesting conditions were not deemed probable by management;

therefore no compensation expense was recorded during fiscal 2005. At such time as management determines that it is

probable that a target stock price will be met, the Company will record the fair value of the corresponding vesting tranche of

the Market Award and will recognize compensation expense, on a straight-line basis, through the remaining vesting period.

The weighted-average grant date fair value of this restricted stock award was estimated at $5.73, as calculated under 

SFAS No. 123, using a trinomial option pricing model based on the following assumptions: expected volatility of 54.2%, 

risk-free interest rate of 3.8%, dividend yield of 0% and an expected term of 978 days.

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan  In February 1997, the Company adopted the 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

(ESPP). A total of 600,000 shares of common stock have been reserved under the ESPP, as amended, for issuance and

purchase by employees of the Company to assist them in acquiring a stock ownership interest in the Company and to

encourage them to remain employees of the Company. The ESPP is qualified under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue 

Code and permits eligible employees to purchase common stock at a discount through payroll deductions during specified

six-month offering periods. No employee may purchase more than $25,000 worth of stock in any calendar year or 1,500

shares in any one offering period. The ESPP is administered by the Compensation Committee appointed by the Board of

Directors and provides generally that the purchase price must not be less than 85% of the fair market value of the common

stock on the first or last day of the offering period, whichever is lower. See Note 14 for discussion of subsequent event.

During fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, a total of 73,594, 51,850 and 40,720 shares, respectively, were issued for combined

proceeds of $673,000, $658,000 and $405,000, respectively. As of June 30, 2005 approximately 82,000 shares were available

under the ESPP.

NOTE 10. 401(k)  PLAN

In January 1994, the Company adopted an employee savings and retirement plan (the 401(k) Plan) covering all of the

Company’s employees. The 401(k) Plan permits but does not require matching contributions by the Company on behalf of all

participants. The Company matches employee contributions at 75%, for up to 6% of an employee’s pretax income. The totals

of these employer contributions were $819,000, $660,000 and $520,000 in fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

NOTE 11. ACCRUED RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

Outsource of Manufacturing Operations During the first quarter of fiscal year 2005, the Company approved a

restructuring plan to discontinue manufacturing operations at their California location and transfer such operations to

Sanmina-SCI Corporation (Sanmina), a contract manufacturer. The Company began transferring the manufacturing of all 

of its product lines to Sanmina in the second quarter of fiscal 2005. The Company completed the transition in August 2005.

Under the restructuring plan, the Company terminated 69 employees and expects to terminate an additional 22 full-time

employees, in early fiscal 2006. In addition, the Company expects to incur charges associated with excess facilities and other

transition expenses. In total, the Company expects to incur between $2.5 million and $3.0 million of pretax charges related

to the transition with the bulk of theses costs occurring during fiscal 2005. The remaining one-time employee termination

benefits are expected to be paid during the first quarter of fiscal 2006 and the excess facility costs will be paid over the

remaining life of the lease, approximately nine years.
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One-time termination benefits are measured at fair value at the communication date and charged to expense ratably over

the remaining employee service period as employees are required to work through the service period in order to obtain the

termination benefit. During fiscal 2005, the Company recorded charges of $2.1 million in cost of revenue associated with the

transition. These charges were primarily comprised of accruals for the one-time termination benefits and other out of pocket

transition costs which were recorded as incurred.

The following table summarizes the activity and balances of the accrued restructuring charges through fiscal 2005:

(in thousands) EMPLOYEE RELATED OTHER TOTAL

Accrued restructuring charges 1,532 523 2,055

Cash payments (1,009) (523) (1,532)

Balance at fiscal 2005 $      523 $     — $      523

NOTE 12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases The Company leases its office, production and sales facilities under non-cancelable operating leases, which expire in

various years through fiscal year 2018. The leases provide for biennial or annual rent escalations intended to approximate

increases in cost of living indices, and certain of the leases provide for rent abatement. The Company has a one five-year

option to renew its lease on its San Diego headquarters facility. Future minimum lease payments under these arrangements

are as follows:

(in thousands) MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

Fiscal 2006 $ 3,251

Fiscal 2007 3,229

Fiscal 2008 3,242

Fiscal 2009 3,339

Fiscal 2010 3,389

Thereafter 14,280

$ 30,730

Rental expense is recognized ratably over the respective lease terms and aggregated $3.8 million in each of the Company’s

fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Guarantees The Company’s standard warranty is a three year advance replacement return-to-factory warranty 

that covers both parts and labor. For products that it distributes and for drives and tapes used in its products that are

manufactured by a third party, the Company passes on to the customer the warranty provided by the manufacturer. 

The Company also provides on-site service for the first warranty year of its higher-end products, for which it contracts 

with third-party service providers.

The Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. The Company’s

product warranty liability reflects its best estimate of probable liability under its product warranties. The Company

estimates the warranty based on expected product failure rates, historical experience, and other currently available

information.

The Company also sells extended on-site warranties for certain products for which revenue is deferred and recognized 

over the warranty period.
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Changes in the liability for product warranty and deferred revenue associated with extended warranties were as follows:

(in thousands) PRODUCT WARRANTY DEFERRED REVENUE

Liability at fiscal 2003 $ 1,390 $  1,458

Settlements made during the period (1,290) (2,211)

Change in liability for warranties issued during the period 2,067 3,936

Change in liability for preexisting warranties 115 (92)

Liability at fiscal 2004 2,282 3,091

Settlements made during the period (1,674) (3,975)

Change in liability for warranties issued during the period 2,319 6,311

Change in liability for preexisting warranties 255 35

Liability at fiscal 2005 $  3,182 $  5,462

Litigation The Company is from time to time involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary

course of business. In the opinion of management, the amount of any ultimate liability with respect to these ordinary course

actions will not materially affect the Company’s consolidated financial statements or results of operations.

NOTE 13. SELECTED QUARTERLY F INANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table presents selected quarterly financial information for the periods indicated. This information has been

derived from the Company’s unaudited quarterly consolidated financial statements, which in the opinion of management

include all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair statement of such information.

The quarterly per share amounts presented below were calculated separately and may not sum to the annual figures

presented in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. These operating results are also not necessarily indicative 

of results for any future period.

FISCAL YEAR 2005 (in thousands, except per share amounts) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 TOTAL

Net revenues $ 59,526 $ 62,525 $ 58,282 $ 55,354 $ 235,687

Gross profit 16,017 17,818 14,886 12,196 60,917

Income (loss) from operations 2,664 3,544 952 (3,636) 3,524

Income (loss) before income taxes 3,007 3,921 1,389 (3,249) 5,068

Net income (loss) 1,900 2,603 1,357 (1,282) 4,578

Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $     0.14 $     0.19 $     0.10 $   (0.09) $   0.33

Diluted 0.13 0.18 0.09 (0.09) 0.32

FISCAL YEAR 2004 (in thousands, except per share amounts) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 TOTAL

Net revenues $ 56,569 $ 67,750 $ 58,789 $ 55,031 $ 238,139

Gross profit 15,577 17,672 16,167 15,238 64,654

Income from operations 3,334 5,188 4,103 2,973 15,598

Income before income taxes 3,420 5,312 4,325 3,142 16,199

Net income 2,223 3,453 2,876 2,073 10,625

Net income per share:

Basic $     0.17 $     0.26 $     0.21 $     0.15 $     0.79

Diluted 0.16 0.24 0.20 0.14 0.74
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NOTE 14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Acquisition In August 2005, the Company acquired Zetta Systems, Inc., a privately held developer of real-time data

protection software for digital storage solutions for $9.0 million in cash.

ESPP In August 2005, the Board of Directors amended the ESPP so that effective with the offering period beginning in

August 2005, the purchase price shall be determined as either (i) a percentage not less than 85%, subject to the Compensation

Committee’s discretion (the Designated Percentage) of the fair market value of the common stock on the last day of the offering

period or (ii) the lower of (a) the Designated Percentage of the fair market value of the common stock on the first day of the

offering period or (b) the Designated Percentage of the fair market value of the common stock on the last day of the offering

period. On August 10, 2005, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Director’s determined the purchase price to be 95%

of the fair market value of the common stock on the last day of each offering period, beginning with the August 2005 offering.

HP Contract  In August 2005, Hewlett-Packard Company (HP), our largest customer, informed the Company of its decision

not to purchase its next-generation, mid-range tape automation production line from Overland. HP will continue to purchase

the tape automation products currently supplied by the Company for some time; however, new products provided by other

suppliers will eventually replace the majority of those purchases. The Company cannot predict how quickly this transition

will occur, but believes the impact to the Company’s revenue during fiscal 2006 will be minimal. In light of this anticipated

loss in future revenue, the Company intends to focus heavily on the delivery of new higher-margin products to its branded

channel during fiscal 2006. The Company’s current three-year contract with HP expires in July 2006. The contract does not

commit HP to buy specific quantities of product at any time.

Shareholder Rights Agreement In August 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan 

(the Rights Plan). In connection with the Rights Plan, the Company declared a dividend of one common share purchase right

for each share of common stock outstanding at the close of business on August 25, 2005. Rights will generally attach to new

shares of common stock issued by the Company in the future. Initially, the rights are attached to, and automatically trade

with, the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock. Under certain circumstances, the rights will detach from the

common stock and become exercisable for one-third of a share of the Company’s common stock at a purchase price of $37 per

share, subject to adjustment.  In the event that a person or group (subject to certain exceptions) acquires 15% or more of the

Company’s common stock, each right will entitle its holder (other than the person or group which acquired the 15% interest)

to purchase from the Company common stock having a market value equal to twice the exercise price of the right. In addition, 

if after such an acquisition, the Company is involved in a merger or other business combination with that person or group, 

or with any person if all Company shareholders are not treated alike, each right will entitle its holder (other than the person

or group which acquired the 15% interest) to purchase common shares of the acquiring company or its parent having a

market value equal to twice the exercise price of the right. The rights expire in August 2015 unless earlier redeemed or

exchanged. The Company is entitled to redeem the Rights at $0.001 per right at any time or to exchange the rights for 

one-third of a share of the Company’s common stock prior to a business combination referred to above. The rights do not

have voting, dividend or distribution rights. The adoption of the Rights Plan has no impact on the financial position or

results of operations of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting will be 
held at 9:00 a.m. on Tuesday,
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Overland Storage, Inc. 
4820 Overland Avenue
San Diego, California

STOCK INFORMATION

Overland’s Common Stock is 
traded on the NASDAQ National
Market under the symbol “OVRL.”

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
161 North Concord Exchange
South St. Paul, Minnesota  55075
Tel: 800-468-9716

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Suite 2900
750 B Street 
San Diego, California 92101

CORPORATE COUNSEL

Sheppard Mullin 
Richter & Hampton LLP
12544 High Bluff Drive
Suite 300
San Diego, California 92130

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY COUNSEL

Knobbe Martens 
Olson & Bear LLP
550 West C Street
Suite 1200
San Diego, California 92101

INVESTOR INFORMATION

Overland’s filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission are 
available, free of charge, upon 
request to the Investor Relations
Department or through Overland’s
web site. They are also available
through the SEC’s EDGAR site on 
the internet at http://www.sec.gov 
or through links to the Company’s
home page. 

For additional information:
Cynthia A. Bond 
Director of
Corporate Communications 
Tel: 858-571-5555 ext. 4269  
E-mail: cbond@overlandstorage.com

The following trademarks are owned by Overland Storage, Inc.: AutomationPAC, BackPAC, CompliancePAC, Ditto, EnterpriseXpress, GUTS Guaranteed Up Time, LibraryPro, LibraryXpress,

Liveswap, LoaderXpress, MiniLibraryXpress, Multi-SitePAC, NEO SERIES, Overland, Overland logo, Overland Storage, PowerLoader, ProtectionPAC, REO SERIES, REO Softkey, REO 100, REO 1000,

REO 4000, REO 9000, SANPiper, ServiceXpress, SmartScale Storage, VR2, Web TLC, XchangeNow, XpressChannel. All other brand names or trademarks appearing in this publication are the

property of their respective owners.

Important Notice: Overland’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2004 is enclosed herewith and contains additional information about the Company’s business, 

including its financial statements and constitutes an integral part of this 2004 Annual Report to Shareholders. This Annual Report contains certain statements of a forward-looking nature

relating to future events or the future performance of the Company. Prospective investors are cautioned that such statements are only predictions and that actual events or results may 

differ materially. In evaluating such statements, prospective investors should specifically consider various factors identified in the Form 10-K, including the matters set forth therein under 

the caption “Risk Factors,” which could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by such forward-looking statements.

WORLDWIDE LOCATIONS

Overland Storage, Inc.
4820 Overland Avenue
San Diego, California 92123 USA
Toll free: 800-729-8725
Tel: 858-571-5555
Fax: 858-571-0982
E-mail: sales@overlandstorage.com
www.overlandstorage.com

Overland Storage (Europe) Ltd.
EMEA Office
Overland House, Ashville Way
Wokingham, Berkshire
RG41 2PL, England
Tel: +44 (0)118-9898000
Fax: +44 (0)118-9891897
E-mail: europe@overlandstorage.com

Overland Storage SARL
Southern Europe Office
13 Rue Camille Desmoulins
92441 Issy les Moulineaux Cedex, France
Tel: +33 (0)1 58 04 25 50
Fax: +33 (0) 1 58 04 26 36
E-mail: europe@overlandstorage.com

Overland Storage GmbH
Central Europe Office
Humboldtstrasse 12
85609 Dornach, Germany
Tel: +49 89-94490-214
Fax: +49 89-94490-414
E-mail: europe@overlandstorage.com

Overland Storage, Inc.
Singapore Rep Office
Level 44, Suntec Tower 3
8 Temasek Boulevard
Singapore, 038988
Tel: +65 6866-3848
Fax: +65 6866-3838
E-mail: asia@overlandstorage.com

Overland Storage, Inc.
Korea Rep Office
15th Floor, Agabang Building
678-38 Yeoksam-dong
Gangnan-gu, Seoul Korea 135-718
Tel: +82.2.527.0011.2
Fax: +82.2.527.0013
E-mail: asia@overlandstorage.com
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